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Andrew M. Cuomo
Governor, State of New York

The Honorable Andrew M. Cuomo
Governor, State of New York

The Honorable Thomas P. DiNapoli
Comptroller
Office of the State Comptroller
State of New York

The Honorable Carl E. Heastie
Speaker
New York State Assembly

The Honorable Andrea Stewart-
Cousins
Temporary President and Majority 
Leader
New York State Senate

The Honorable Robert G. Ortt
Minority Conference Leader
New York State Senate

Dear Fellow New Yorkers,

Although this is a time of unprecedented challenges for the Empire State and all New Yorkers, it is also a 
time of great opportunity. Our state has been at the forefront of the fight against COVID-19, working with 
the cooperation and dedication of millions of New Yorkers to flatten the curve and serve as a model for the 
rest of the nation.

And now, we're going to work.

The Dormitory Authority of the State of New York (DASNY) continues to play a critical role in financing and 
building education and health care buildings across the state. The institutions DASNY serves are anchors 
of our communities, creating jobs and opportunities and helping to meet the health needs of countless New 
Yorkers. With uniquely exceptional expertise in delivering low-cost, tax-exempt borrowing and in managing 
large, complex construction projects, DASNY reduces costs and contributes invaluably to the work of a 
wide range of State and nonprofit entities.

On behalf of all New Yorkers, I applaud the DASNY Board, its Chair, Alfonso L. Carney, Jr., and its 
President and CEO, Reuben R. McDaniel III, for their ongoing leadership and thank DASNY's staff for their 
tireless dedication and service to the people of the Empire State.

Together, we will continue to unify, grow, and keep New York's trajectory pointing ever upward.

Andrew M. Cuomo
Governor, State of New York

Sincerely,



Dear Governor Cuomo and Distinguished Leaders,

DASNY’s expertise in financing, developing and building large and complex projects is unique in the nation. Our 
work is visible in every region of this state, and we are proud of our role in improving the lives of New Yorkers. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2019-20, DASNY completed more than two dozen financings worth nearly $10 billion and managed 
more than 1,000 construction projects totaling hundreds of millions of dollars. Our contributions allowed hospitals, 
universities, and state and local governments to meet the growing and changing needs of our taxpayers efficiently 
and cost effectively.  

In New York’s economy, DASNY continues to play a significant role in supporting New York’s exceptional network 
of New York State-certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises (“MWBEs”). Working closely with 
the business community throughout the state, we expand options and opportunities for this important and growing 
sector. Since 2011, more than $1.5 billion in DASNY construction expenditures has gone to MWBEs. Going forward, 
we will continue to help MWBEs achieve more participation in contracts for professional services, obtain greater 
access to bonding and capital, and develop business capacity to meet the needs of our customers. 

This year, our country faces the unprecedented challenge of the COVID-19 pandemic. DASNY will continue to work 
alongside our partners to devote all energies necessary to manage and recover from the impact of this vicious virus 
on our citizens and our economy. 
 
Our bottom-line mission for 75 years has been to deliver the highest levels of customer service and improve the 
quality of life in New York State. Looking forward, DASNY embraces the challenges of creating energy efficient 
structures that achieve Governor Cuomo’s ambitious energy goals and supporting Governor Cuomo and the State 
Legislature as, together, we build a stronger future for all New Yorkers. 

                              Sincerely,

The Honorable William A. Barclay
Minority Leader
New York State Assembly 

The Honorable Liz Krueger
Chair, Senate Finance Committee 

The Honorable Helene E. Weinstein
Chair
Assembly Ways and Means Committee

The Honorable James J. Seward
Ranking Minority Member
Senate Finance Committee

The Honorable Edward P. Ra
Ranking Minority Member

Assembly Ways and Means Committee

Reuben R. McDaniel, III
President & CEO, DASNY

Alfonso L. Carney, Jr.
Chair, DASNY
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Reuben R. McDaniel, III
President & CEO, DASNY

Alfonso L. Carney, Jr.
Chair



2020 
highlights 
Bonds Delivered | Bonds Delivered | $9.8 billion$9.8 billion

Largest Public Financing | Largest Public Financing | $3.4 billion$3.4 billion

Outstanding Bond Portfolio | Outstanding Bond Portfolio | $58.2 billion$58.2 billion

Total Financed Since Founding | Total Financed Since Founding | $152.2 billion$152.2 billion

Largest Private Higher Education Largest Private Higher Education 
Financing | Financing | $424.5 million$424.5 million

Largest Private Health Care Largest Private Health Care 
Financing | Financing | $466.3 million$466.3 million
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Largest TELP Lease | Largest TELP Lease | $23.2 million$23.2 million

Construction Expenditures | Construction Expenditures | $733.3 million$733.3 million

Construction Projects | Construction Projects | 1,0841,084

Construction Pipeline | Construction Pipeline | $7.75 billion$7.75 billion

MWBE Expenditures | MWBE Expenditures | $184.2 million$184.2 million

Bronx Community College, Gould Memorial Library Dome

Largest Private Higher Education Largest Private Higher Education 
Financing | Financing | $424.5 million$424.5 million

Tax-Exempt Equipment Leasing Tax-Exempt Equipment Leasing 
Program (TELP) Leases | Program (TELP) Leases | $57.2 million$57.2 million

4
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City University of 
New York

389 projects valued at $2.65 billion389 projects valued at $2.65 billion

Lehman College, $17.6 million addition to Center for the Performing Arts
5
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The City College of New York, $1 million renovations to the Great Hall in Shepard Hall.  

John Jay College of Criminal Justice, $10.2 million refurbishing of Haaren Hall Pool.

Borough of Manhattan Community College, $5.9 million façade restoration.
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State University 
of New York

88 projects valued at $289.2 million88 projects valued at $289.2 million

7
Fashion Institute of Technology, Rendering of New $130 million    
Academic Building courtesy SHoP Architects 
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SUNY Plattsburgh, Ribbon-cutting for $19 million 
renovation project at Whiteface Hall.

SUNY Plattsburgh Kent & Macomb Halls received $17 
million in renovation/upgrades.

SUNY Polytechnic Institute in Utica. New York’s first net 
zero-carbon and net-zero energy-ready residence hall.

$2 million state-of-the-art Health and Counseling Services 
Center at University at Albany.

Beverwyck Schuyler south entrance at University at Albany.

$16 million renovation project at Buffalo State’s Tower 3. 
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Mental Hygiene 

323 projects valued at $878.3 million323 projects valued at $878.3 million

9

South Beach Psychiatric Center Inpatient Building, $272 million



Mental Hygiene 
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Brooklyn Women’s Rehabilitation Facility for Office of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS).

BEFORE AFTER
Broome County DDSO. New ramp installed. Office for People With Developmental Disabilities (OPWDD).

Argus Community Inc. New 70,000 sf building in the Bronx housing 115 transitional-living beds and an outpatient 
program for 250 clients (OASAS).



Other New York 
State Clients

11
Niagara Falls State Park. Photo courtesy: NYS Parks
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Fahnestock State Park Education Center. Upgrade the Highland Lodge building and surrounding site and construct a new 
Memorial Pavilion. New York State Office of Parks, Recreation & Historic Preservation (OPRHP).

Harriman State Park Cabin. Building repairs and campground 
improvements of the Top of The Pines cabins (OPRHP). 

Bevier Street Pump Station. New pump station in Binghamton is 20+ feet below grade and 
electrical stair tower to bring the electrical equipment nearly seven feet above grade and well 
above the 100-year flood plain height. Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR).



Financing Clients 
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A $346.2 million Rochester Institute of Technology financing, Innovative Maker and Learning Complex. Photo 
Courtesy: RIT.

A $356.5 million Montefiore Health System financing for new outpatient/ambulatory care center at White Plains 
Hospital Center for Advanced Medicine and Surgery. Photo Courtesy: White Plains Hospital.

A $284.5 million financing for the David H. Koch Center for Cancer Care at Memorial Sloan Kettering (left and 
above). Photo Courtesy: Memorial Sloan Kettering/Karsten Moran.



Under Governor Cuomo’s leadership since 2011, more than Under Governor Cuomo’s leadership since 2011, more than 
$1.5 billion in construction expenditures to New York State-$1.5 billion in construction expenditures to New York State-
certified MWBEs. certified MWBEs. 

Diversity & 
Inclusion

  Projects with significant MWBE participation during FY 2019-20 include:   

•	  SUNY | Buffalo State College - Tower 3 Construction | MWBE participation: 
37.07%

•	  CUNY | John Jay College of Criminal Justice - Haaren Hall Swimming Pool | 
MWBE participation: 94.73%

•	  OMH | South Beach Psychiatric Center | MWBE participation: 31.71%

15
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$12.3 million 
NYS MWBE-certified for Outside 
Counsel since 2011

$859,613 
NYS MWBE-certified for Audit Services 
since 2011

$21.7 million 
MWBE Underwriter Designations on 
Public Transactions since 2011



Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

New Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 
 

 
1 

City University of New York (CUNY) 
 
Bernard M. Baruch College $30,000,000 
Renovation (Phase 2) of the Field Building at 17 Lexington Avenue. (December 2019) 
 
Brooklyn College $1,800,000 
Upgrade to the Chemical Storage Rooms and renovation of the two Chemistry Labs in Ingersoll Hall. (September 2019) 
 
College of Staten Island $2,000,000 
Sitework and ADA compliance at buildings 1N, 2N, 3S and 5S and gutter work at buildings 1N, 2N, 3S, 5S, 1A, 2A, and 
3A at the College of Staten Island. (September 2019) 
 
Graduate School of Journalism $2,000,000 
Upgrade to the cooling system for the main data center network equipment at the Graduate School of Journalism.  
(October 2019) 
 
Herbert H. Lehman College $1,500,000 
Replacement of fan coil units to meet NYC Building Code at Carman Hall. (September 2019) 
 
Herbert H. Lehman College $1,000,000 
Replacement of the mechanical system's air handling units at Shuster Hall. (September 2019) 
 
Herbert H. Lehman College $1,500,000 
Replacement of roof at Davis Hall and Gillet Hall. (September 2019) 
 
Hunter College $4,500,000 
Renovation of the Hunter College Cooperman Library. (April 2019) 
 
Medgar Evers College $2,007,712 
Construction of an outdoor, multiple level, three season student space designed to be used as an add-on to the 
Bedford Building Library. (April 2019) 
 
Queens College $12,750,000  
Replacement of HVAC systems, corridor lighting controls, and the electrical back-up generator to run the Animal Lab 
at Gregory Razran Hall. (June 2019) 
 
Queens College $1,396,000 
Enhancements to the perimeter heating system in the Queens College Science Building. (August 2019) 
 
Queensborough Community College $1,900,000 
Reconstruction of the vehicle fuel dispensing system. (November 2019) 
 
York College $2,000,000 
Renovation of existing space to create a new classroom and office space in the 3H wing of the Academic 
Core Building. (September 2019) 
 
 
NYS Department of Health (DOH) 
 
NYS Veterans Home at St. Albans $9,575,000 
St. Albans kitchen design and construction. (December 2019) 
 
 
Office of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS) 
 
Credo Community Center $7,486,000 
Purchase and renovation of an existing building at 611-615 West Main Street to relocate an outpatient clinic and other  
ancillary treatment services. (November 2019) 

17
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

New Construction Projects 
Project and Purpose Amount 

2 

Office of Mental Health (OMH) 
Binghamton Psychiatric Center $3,400,000 
Stabilization and weatherization at Main Building No. 47. (September 2019) 

Capital District Psychiatric Center $12,400,000 
Renovation of the main building at Capital District Psychiatric Center, Building 1, to meet the current Joint Commission standards. 
(January 2020) 

Central New York Psychiatric Center $1,445,000 
Renovation of five cottages on campus, buildings 129, 132, 130, 133, and 88. (November 2019) 

Hutchings Psychiatric Center $4,500,000 
Reconfiguration of the Children's Unit at Building 7. (November 2019) 

Kingsboro Psychiatric Center $10,090,000 
Interior renovations to Kingsboro PC Buildings 1 and 2. (June 2019) 

Mid-Hudson Forensic Psychiatric Center $250,000,000 
Construction of a new 250 inpatient bed services building at the Mid-Hudson Forensic Psychiatric Center. (November 2019) 

South Beach Psychiatric Center $2,176,000 
Construction of two cabling routes of telecommunications duct banks at South Beach Psychiatric Center. (April 2019) 

Office for People With Developmental Disabilities (OPWDD) 
Capital District DDSO $1,000,000 
Sitework improvements at the Adirondack Clinic. (October 2019) 

Sunmount DDSO $1,599,000 
Replacement of the steam and condensate piping between the boiler house and utility tunnel between Building 8. 
(December 2019) 

State University of New York (SUNY) 
State University College at Geneseo $1,715,000 
Window replacement at Onondaga Hall. (May 2019) 

State University College at Geneseo $1,400,000 
Roof replacement on Livingston, Jones, and Stueben residence halls. (January 2020) 

State University College at New Paltz $40,000,000 
Renovation of Mohonk Hall, including a 70 bed vertical expansion of a new upper 4th floor level. (January 2020) 

State University College at Oneonta $23,130,992 
Complete gut renovation and addition to Ford Hall.  (November 2019) 

State University College at Purchase $6,040,919 
Removal of hazardous waste materials, modifications to the existing fire alarm systems, and the replacement lighting fixtures 
in the Big Haus B-Wing and Crossroads D-Wing of the main residence hall. (June 2019) 

State University College at Purchase $4,000,280 
Access control installation at Building #45 (Big Haus/Crossroads/Farside), Outback, and Fort Awesome. In addition, 
relocation of one existing emergency generator and installation of one furnished by the college. (November 2019) 



Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

New Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 
 

 
3 

University at Buffalo $3,333,458 
Renovation of 24 bathrooms at Dewey Hall and Roosevelt Hall. (May 2019) 
 
University at Buffalo $2,156,102 
Replacement of electrical components and upgrade of lighting to LED in the Ellicot Complex on Porter Quad. (May 2019) 
 
University at Buffalo $2,596,155 
Replacement of the curtainwall system at Goodyear Hall, including repair of surrounding materials damaged by  
water infiltration. (June 2019) 
 
 
Modified Service Programs 
 
Homeless Housing Assistance Corporation (HHAC) $883,375,518 
Thirty projects for homeless housing located in Albany, Bronx, Chemung, Dutchess, Erie, Franklin, Kings,  
Monroe, New York, Onandaga, Rensselaer, Saratoga, Schenectady, Suffolk and Westchester counties. 
 
Office of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS) $37,441,500 
Four projects in Albany, Kings, Monroe and Orleans counties. 
 
New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation (OPRHP) $4,158.548 
One project in Ulster county. 
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

Completed Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 

 
1 

 
City University of New York (CUNY)                                                                                                                                          
 
Baruch College $2,926,432 
Information Technology Building skylight replacement. (August 2019) 
 
Baruch College  $2,659,105 
Window washing systems and new flooring at Newman Vertical Campus 
and Information Technology Building. (December 2019)                                                                                                                   
  
Borough of Manhattan Community College                                                                                                                            $5,160,197 
Façade restoration. (January 2020) 
                                                                                                                                         
Borough of Manhattan Community College                                                                                                                            $2,917,086 
Gymnasium air conditioning equipment replacement. (August 2019) 
                                                                                                                                        
Brooklyn College                                                                                                                                                                      $12,468,796 
Whitman Hall ramps reconstruction. (May 2019) 
 
Brooklyn College                                                                                                                                                                        $2,681,455 
Whitehead Hall window replacement. (August 2018)*  
 
City College of New York                                                                                                                                                           $1,774,067 
Steinman Hall first floor repairs. (May 2019)                                  
                                                                                                                                          
City College of New York                                                                                                                                                           $2,734,595                                                                                                                           
Compton-Goethals basement renovation. (June 2019) 
                                                                                                                                          
City College of New York                                                                                                                                                           $5,836,947 
Library technology center and WHCR radio station cooling system. (April 2019) 
                                                                                                                                          
City College of New York                                                                                                                                                           $2,127,238 
Wingate Hall locker room renovation. (August 2019) 
 
City College of New York                                                                                                                                                           $1,061,203 
Great Hall renovation in Shepard Hall. (February 2020) 
 
CUNY Graduate Center                                                                                                                                                              $2,593,962  
Elevator upgrades. (August 2018)* 
 
Hostos Community College  $5,657,172 
500 Grand Concourse window replacement. (January 2020) 
                                                                                                               
Hunter College  $5,682,525 
North Building elevator upgrades. (October 2019) 
 
John Jay College of Criminal Justice  $9,915,165 
Haaren Hall swimming pool renovation. (October 2019) 
                                                                                                                                       
John Jay College of Criminal Justice                                                                                                                                     $13,912,699 
Haaren Hall façade refurbishment. (July 2019) 
 
John Jay College of Criminal Justice                                                                                                                                     $22,685,538 
Haaren Hall renovation. (April 2016)* 
  
Kingsborough Community College                                                                                                                                          $2,264,038 
Student conference center renovation. (January 2020) 
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

Completed Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 

 
2 

       
LaGuardia Community College                                                                                                                                                 $4,655,358 
Building E roof replacement. (February 2020)                                                                                                                                      
 
Lehman College                                                                                                                                                                        $16,920,482 
Concert hall addition and renovation. (September 2019) 
 
Medgar Evers College                                                                                                                                                                $4,894,740 
Carroll Street Building exterior upgrades. (April 2019)                                                                                                                                          
    
Queensborough Community College                                                                                                                                     $11,815,203 
Cafeteria and central kitchen renovation. (October 2016)* 
 
Queensborough Community College                                                                                                                                     $41,985,141 
Electrical reconstruction phase I. (June 2019)  
 
New York City Mayor’s Office of Criminal Justice            
                                                                                                        
Bronx Family Courthouse                                                                                                                                                         $4,049,301 
Renovation. (March 2019)* 
 
Office of Addiction Services and Support (OASAS) 
                                                                                                                
Dick Van Dyke Addiction Treatment Center                                                                                                                            $5,666,924 
Masonry and interior renovations. (September 2019) 
                                                                                                                
Pilgrim Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                                         $1,450,843 
Building 5 roof replacement. (October 2019) 
 
Office of Mental Health (OMH)                                                                                                                                                  
 
Buffalo Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                                      $16,736,005 
Building 62 & 79 renovations. (September 2019) 
 
Capital District Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                           $2,082,640 
Building 2 chiller plant equipment and controls replacement. (May 2019) 
 
Central New York Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                       $9,575,539 
Building 39 generator installation. (August 2019)  
 
Mohawk Valley Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                           $1,529,533 
Building 31 asbestos and lead abatement. (November 2019)  
 
Mohawk Valley Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                           $2,224,421 
Building 64 bathroom renovations. (April 2019) 
 
Rockland Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                                   $17,947,323 
New Support Services Building. (October 2019) 
                                                                                                                                                
South Beach Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                           $285,554,591 
New Inpatient Building. (March 2020)  
 
St. Lawrence Psychiatric Center                                                                                                                                               $6,509,151 
Building 202 replace seven HVAC units. (March 2019)* 
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

Completed Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 

 
3 

 
Office for People with Developmental Disabilities (OPWDD)                                                                                                  
 
Staten Island DDSO                                                                                                                                                                    $1,337,691 
Removal and construction of salt storage shed. (September 2019) 
 
State University of New York (SUNY)                                                                                                                                      
 
University at Albany                                                                                                                                                                 $31,454,061 
Dutch Quad G&H renovations. (December 2019) 
 
SUNY Brockport                                                                                                                                                                         $1,670,269 
Lower quad landscape. (November 2018)* 
 
SUNY Brockport                                                                                                                                                                         $2,394,050 
Masonry repair. (August 2019) 
 
Buffalo State College                                                                                                                                                               $15,017,047 
Tower 3 renovation. (July 2019) 
                                                                                                                                     
Buffalo State College                                                                                                                                                                 $1,038,470 
Moore Complex bathroom and kitchen upgrades. (August 2019) 
 
University at Buffalo                                                                                                                                                                  $2,911,577 
Governor Complex bathroom renovation. (August 2019)  
 
University at Buffalo                                                                                                                                                                  $2,333,292 
Governor Complex roof replacement. (August 2019) 
                                                                                                                                        
SUNY Geneseo                                                                                                                                                                           $1,094,777 
Saratoga Hall drainage. (August 2019) 
 
SUNY Geneseo                                                                                                                                                                           $1,902,625 
Window replacement at Nassau, Suffolk and Wayne Halls. (July 2019) 
 
SUNY Plattsburgh                                                                                                                                                                    $19,554,361 
Whiteface Hall renovation. (August 2019) 
 
SUNY Purchase                                                                                                                                                                          $1,255,160 
Renovation and repair of existing roofs. (November 2019) 
 
SUNY Purchase                                                                                                                                                                          $2,178,845 
Building 45 quad rehabilitation. (August 2019)  
 
SUNY Purchase                                                                                                                                                                          $9,544,224 
Big Haus interior renovations. (August 2019) 
 
SUNY Purchase                                                                                                                                                                          $1,721,972 
M-Street Building sprinkler installation. (August 2019) 
 
Modified Service Programs 
 
City University of New York (CUNY)                                                                                                                                     $132,000,002 
One project in Kings county. 
 
Homeless Housing Assistance Corporation (HHAC)    $331,932,751 
Sixteen projects for homeless housing located in Yates, Erie, Albany, Bronx, Tompkins, Kings, Dutchess, 
New York, Suffolk and Rensselaer. 
 

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 
(Includes projects valued at $1 million and above) 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
 

Completed Construction Projects 
 

Project and Purpose Amount 

 
4 

 
New York State Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services (OASAS)    $40,476,000 
Four projects in Bronx, Onondaga, Queens and Monroe.  
 
New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and History Preservation (OPRHP)    $19,236,453 
Two projects in Niagara and Ulster. 
 
State University of New York (SUNY)    $11,736,000 
Ten projects in Erie, Westchester, Nassau, Rockland, Warren and Suffolk. 
 
 
 
*Project should have been included in prior fiscal year  
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Bonds delivered during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 
 
 

 
Bonds Delivered 
 
Project and Purpose Amount 
 
 
InterAgency Council Pooled Loan Program Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A $26,900,000 
(Subseries 2019A-1 (Tax-Exempt) and Subseries 2019A-2 (Federally Taxable)) 
The Series 2019A Bonds were issued to finance the acquisition, renovation and furnishing of certain facilities  
of the Series 2019 Participants. (April 10, 2019) 
 
Terence Cardinal Cooke Health Care Center Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A 25,000,000 
The Series 2019A Bonds were issued to finance various upgrades across Terence Cardinal Cooke’s campus. 
(April 12, 2019) 
 
Catholic Health System Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A and Series 2019B (Variable) 184,645,000 
The Series 2019A and 2019B Bonds were issued to currently refund the Catholic Health Systems Obligated Group  
Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, 2006B, 2006C, 2006D and Series 2008, payoff bridge loans to two credit facilities,  
reimburse the hospitals for project costs and to finance several capital projects at member hospitals of the Obligated  
Group, including an Electronic Medical Records system which will be used throughout the system.  (April 25, 2019) 
 
Cornell University Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, Series 2019B (Variable) and  286,115,000 
Series 2019C Private Placement (Variable) 
The Series 2019 Bonds were issued to refund DASNY’s Cornell University Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A and to  
refinance tax-exempt commercial paper issued by DASNY. (April 25, 2019) 
 
Brooklyn Law School Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A and Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 34,970,000 
The Series 2019A Bonds were issued to current refund Brooklyn Law School Revenue Bonds, Series 2009. 
The Series 2019B Bonds (Federally Taxable) were used to advance refund Brooklyn Law School Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2012A.  (May 23, 2019) 
 
Personal Income Tax Revenue Bonds (General Purpose), Series 2019A and 2019B (Federally Taxable) 1,626,525,000 
The Series 2019A and Series 2019B Bonds were issued to finance or reimburse all or a portion of the costs of  
programs and projects throughout the State and to refund all or portions of various series of State-supported debt  
previously issued by Authorized Issuers.  (June 28, 2019) 
 
School Districts Revenue Bond Financing Program Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A-E 482,365,000 
The Series 2019A-E Bonds were issued to finance all or a portion of the costs of school district capital facilities and  
school district capital equipment and to refinance certain bond anticipation notes issued to finance all or a portion of the  
costs of school district capital facilities and school district capital equipment.  (June 7, 2019) 
 
Cornell University Revenue Bonds, Series 2019D (Green Bonds) 121,415,000 
The Series 2019D Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs associated with the construction of buildings  
and infrastructure for housing, dining facilities, recreational facilities and programming space for the University’s student  
population, including the construction of approximately 2,000 new undergraduate housing beds on the north campus.   
(September 19 2019) 
 
Northwell Health Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, Series 2019B-1 (Put Bond),  202,325,000 
Series 2019B-2 (Put Bond) and Series 2019B-3 (Put Bond) 
The Series 2019A, 2019B-1, 2019B-2 and 2019B-3 Bonds were issued to finance projects for North Shore University  
Hospital, Long Island Jewish Medical Center, Glen Cove Hospital, Southside Hospital, Huntington Hospital Association  
d/b/a Huntington Hospital and Staten Island University Hospital and refund the North Shore-Long Island Jewish Obligated  
Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2009E.  (September 26, 2019) 
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Bonds delivered during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 
 
 

 
Bonds Delivered 
 
Project and Purpose Amount 
 
 
 
Rochester Institute of Technology Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable), 346,220,000 
Series 2019C (Private Placement) (Variable), and Series 2020A (Forward Delivery)(1) 
The Series 2019A and Series 2019C Bonds were issued to finance costs associated with various renovation projects on  
the RIT campus and to refinance a taxable bank loan. The Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) Bonds were issued to refund  
DASNY’s RIT Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. The Series 2020A (Forward Delivery) Bonds were issued to refund DASNY’s  
RIT Revenue Bonds, Series 2010.  (October 8, 2019) 
 
Personal Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (General Purpose), Series 2019C 79,000,000 
The Series 2019C Bonds were issued to refund the New York State Housing Finance Agency State Personal Income  
Tax Revenue Bonds (Economic Development and Housing) 2005 Series C.  (October 30, 2019) 
 
Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series 1, 2019 Series 1 (Bidding Group 1) 284,545,000 
and 2019 Series 1 (Bidding Group 2) 
The 2019 Series 1 Bonds were issued to finance a portion of an ambulatory care facility in Manhattan and to purchase  
various equipment.  (November 1, 2019) 
 
St. Mary's Hospital for Children, Inc. Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 76,100,000 
The Series 2019 Bonds were issued to refund the St. Mary’s Hospital for Children (Tax-exempt) Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2010.  (November 15, 2019) 
 
Rockefeller University Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, Series 2019B (Green Bonds) and Series 2019C 209,420,000 
The Series 2019A Bonds were issued to refund the University’s Series 2009A Bonds. The Series 2019B Bonds were  
issued to finance a portion of a new laboratory building, a conference and meeting pavilion, and other projects  
associated with the University’s new River Campus located over the FDR Drive.  
The 2019C Bonds were issued to refund the University’s 2009C Bonds.  (November 26, 2019) 
 
State University of New York Dormitory Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A  702,285,000 
and Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 
The Series 2019A Bonds were issued to fund ongoing system-wide construction costs for approximately one year of  
SUNY’s capital plan for the construction and rehabilitation of various Dormitory Facilities.  The Series 2019B (Federally Taxable)  
bonds were issued to refund of all or portions of various DASNY bonds, including the old SUNY Dorm Program and  
the new SUNY Dorm Program.  (December 3, 2019) 
 
Convent of the Sacred Heart Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Federally Taxable) 22,042,000 
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to refund the DASNY Convent of the Sacred Heart Insured Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2011.  (January 2, 2020) 
 
Personal Income Tax Revenue Bonds (General Purpose), Series 2019D, Series 2019E and  3,404,620,000 
Series 2019F (Federally Taxable) 
The Series 2019D, Series 2019E and Series 2019F Bonds were issued to finance or reimburse all or a portion of the  
costs of programs and projects throughout the State and the refunding of all or portions of various series of State-supported  
debt.  (January 3, 2020) 
 
Trevor Day School Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 62,460,000 
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to refund and restructure the Trevor Day School, Series 2011 Bonds and to finance  
the costs of terminating two interest rate swap agreements integrated with the Series 2011 Bonds. (January 23, 2020) 
 
Fordham University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 145,190,000 
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs associated Fordham’s campus center project,  
which entails the renovation of the existing 124,000 square-foot McGinley Center located on the Rose Hill Campus as well as  
the construction of a new 71,000 square-foot, three-level, addition to the McGinley Center.  (January 29, 2020) 
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NYU Langone Hospitals Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A                                                                         466,305,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance projects including; (a) the construction of a 
free-standing emergency department and an ambulatory care center in Brooklyn, New York, (b) the 
construction of a neonatal intensive care unit and supporting space in Mineola, New York and (c) 
leasehold improvements for clinical care and faculty practice physician
offices in Garden City, New York.  (February 11, 2020)

Barnard College Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                                                40,555,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs associated with improvements 
to existing facilities located on the Morningside Campus and off-campus College sites and to 
refund the Series 2007A Bonds.  (February 13, 2020)

Montefiore Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                              356,510,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to currently refund DASNY’s Montefiore Medical Center FHA-Insured 
Mortgage Hospital Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series A, to advance refund Montefiore Medical Center GNMA 
Collateralized Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, 2016A and 2016B and to refinance commercial loans 
and other indebtedness of the institution and/or its affiliates.  In addition, new money bonds were issued 
for the reimbursement of capital projects for Montefiore Medical Center, White Plains Hospital and 
other affiliates.  (February 20, 2020)

Jewish Theological Seminary of America Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A and Series 2020B	            39,000,000
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to finance the reimbursement of project costs related to a major 
modernization project which includes improvements and upgrades to existing buildings and the construction 
of a new building including a library and a student dormitory.  (March 4, 2020)

New York University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B (Federally Taxable)	                                                                   424,480,000
The Series 2020B Bonds were issued to refund a portion of DASNY’s New York University Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012A, 2012B, 2013A, and 2015A Bonds.  (March 10, 2020)

Columbia University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                               150,000,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance various design, construction and renovation projects 
throughout the University system. (March 19, 2020)

	                                                                                                               Total Bonds Issued                                 $9,798,992,000

Tax-Exempt Leasing Program (TELP)

TELP I (Health Care)

State University of New York University Hospital at Syracuse                                                                                               23,200,000
$23.2 million for nursing, imaging, surgical and information technology equipment.  (February 6, 
2019)

United Health Services Hospitals, Inc.                                                                                                                                      10,066,000
$10.1 million lease for cardiology, operating room, nursing, pharmacy, radiology and information 
technology equipment.  (May 9, 2019)

NYU Langone Hospitals                                                                                                                                                             13,177,894
$13.2 million lease for Information Technology / EPIC Systems. (December 19, 2019)

Total TELP I Leases                                                                                                                                                                  $46,443,894

Tax-Exempt Leasing Program II (Higher Education & Other Not-for-Profits)

NYSARC, Inc.                                                                                                                                                                             $10,741,105
$10.7 million lease for information technology, telecommunications, manufacturing and 
transportation equipment. (January 23, 2020)
                                                                                                                          Total TELP II Leases                                       $10,741,105

                                                                                                                         Grand Total TELP Leases                               $57,184,999

 
Bonds delivered during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 

Dormitory Authority State of New York (A Component Unit of the State of New York) 
 
 

 
Bonds Delivered 
 
Project and Purpose Amount 
 
NYU Langone Hospitals Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A 466,305,000 
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance projects including; (a) the construction of a free-standing emergency  
department and an ambulatory care center in Brooklyn, New York, (b) the construction of a neonatal intensive care unit  
and supporting space in Mineola, New York and (c) leasehold improvements for clinical care and faculty practice physician  
offices in Garden City, New York.  (February 11, 2020) 
 
Barnard College Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A 40,555,000 
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs associated with improvements to existing  
facilities located on the Morningside Campus and off-campus College sites and to refund the Series 2007A Bonds. 
(February 13, 2020) 
 
Montefiore Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A 356,510,000 
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to currently refund DASNY’s Montefiore Medical Center FHA-Insured Mortgage  
Hospital Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series A, to advance refund Montefiore Medical Center GNMA Collateralized Taxable  
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, 2016A and 2016B and to refinance commercial loans and other indebtedness of the  
institution and/or its affiliates.  In addition, new money bonds were issued for the reimbursement of capital projects for  
Montefiore Medical Center, White Plains Hospital and other affiliates.  (February 20, 2020) 
 
Jewish Theological Seminary of America Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A  39,000,000 
and Series 2020B 
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to finance the reimbursement of project costs related to a major modernization  
project which includes improvements and upgrades to existing buildings and the construction of a new building including  
a library and a student dormitory.  (March 4, 2020) 
 
New York University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B (Federally Taxable) 424,480,000 
The Series 2020B Bonds were issued to refund a portion of DASNY’s New York University Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2012A, 2012B, 2013A, and 2015A Bonds.  (March 10, 2020) 
 
Columbia University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A 150,000,000 
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance various design, construction and renovation projects  
throughout the University system. (March 19, 2020) 
 

 Total Bonds Issued $9,798,992,000 

 
(1) Includes the $48,345,000 Rochester Institute of Technology Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A (Forward Delivery) together with the Series 2019A, 

B and C.  The Series 2019A, B and C and Series 2020A priced on the same day.  The Series 2019A, B and C closed on 10/8/19.  The Series 
2020A closed on 4/3/20. 

(1) Includes the $48,345,000 Rochester Institute of Technology Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A (Forward Delivery) together with the Series 2019A, B and C.  The Series 
2019A, B and C and Series 2020A priced on the same day.  The Series 2019A, B and C closed on 10/8/19.  The Series 2020A closed on 4/3/20.



Governance

ALFONSO L. CARNEY, JR., Chair, New York.

Alfonso L. Carney, Jr. was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19, 2013. Mr. 

Carney is a principal of Rockwood Partners, LLC, which provides medical consulting services in New York 

City. He has served as Acting Chief Operating Officer and Corporate Secretary for the Goldman Sachs 

Foundation in New York where, working with the President of the Foundation, he managed the staff of 

the Foundation, provided strategic oversight of the administration, communications and legal affairs 

teams, and developed selected Foundation program initiatives. Mr. Carney has held senior level legal 

positions with Altria Group Inc., Philip Morris Companies Inc., Philip Morris Management Corporation, 

Kraft Foods, Inc. and General Foods Corporation. Mr. Carney holds a Bachelor’s degree in philosophy 

from Trinity College and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Virginia School of Law. His term 

expired on March 31, 2016 and by law he continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and 

qualified. 

DASNY is governed by an eleven-member board.  Board members include the Commissioner of Education of the State, the Commissioner of 

Health of the State, the State Comptroller or one member appointed by him or her who serves until his or her successor is appointed, the Director 

of the Budget of the State, one member appointed by the Temporary President of the State Senate, one member appointed by the Speaker 

of the State Assembly and five members appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, for terms of three years.  The 

Commissioner of Education of the State, the Commissioner of Health of the State and the Director of the Budget of the State each may appoint a 

representative to attend and vote at DASNY meetings.  The members of DASNY serve without compensation but are entitled to reimbursement of 

expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.  

The Governor of the State appoints a Chair from the members appointed by him or her and the members of DASNY annually choose the following 

officers, of which the first two must be members of DASNY: Vice-Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

JOHN B. JOHNSON, JR., Vice-Chair, Watertown.

John B. Johnson, Jr. was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19, 2013.  Mr. 

Johnson is Chairman of the Board of the Johnson Newspaper Corporation, which publishes the Watertown 

Daily Times, Batavia Daily News, Malone Telegram, Catskill Daily Mail, Hudson Register Star, Ogdensburg 

Journal, Massena-Potsdam Courier Observer, seven weekly newspapers and three shopping newspapers.  

He holds a Bachelor’s degree from Vanderbilt University, and Master’s degrees in Journalism and 

Business Administration from the Columbia University Graduate School of Journalism and Business.  Mr. 

Johnson was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Science degree from Clarkson University.  Mr. Johnson’s 

term expired on March 31, 2016 and by law he continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and 

qualified.

BERYL L. SNYDER, J.D., Secretary, New York.

Beryl L. Snyder was reappointed as a member of DASNY by the Governor on June 19, 2013.  Ms. Snyder 

is a principal in HBJ Investments, LLC, an investment company where her duties include evaluation 

and analysis of a wide variety of investments in, among other areas: fixed income, equities, alternative 

investments and early stage companies.  She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in History from Vassar 

College and a Juris Doctor degree from Rutgers University.  Her current term expired on August 31, 2016 

and by law she continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and qualified.
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Board Members

NYU Langone Hospitals Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A                                                                         466,305,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance projects including; (a) the construction of a 
free-standing emergency department and an ambulatory care center in Brooklyn, New York, (b) the 
construction of a neonatal intensive care unit and supporting space in Mineola, New York and (c) 
leasehold improvements for clinical care and faculty practice physician
offices in Garden City, New York.  (February 11, 2020)

Barnard College Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                                                40,555,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs associated with improvements 
to existing facilities located on the Morningside Campus and off-campus College sites and to 
refund the Series 2007A Bonds.  (February 13, 2020)

Montefiore Obligated Group Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                              356,510,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to currently refund DASNY’s Montefiore Medical Center FHA-Insured 
Mortgage Hospital Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series A, to advance refund Montefiore Medical Center GNMA 
Collateralized Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, 2016A and 2016B and to refinance commercial loans 
and other indebtedness of the institution and/or its affiliates.  In addition, new money bonds were issued 
for the reimbursement of capital projects for Montefiore Medical Center, White Plains Hospital and 
other affiliates.  (February 20, 2020)

Jewish Theological Seminary of America Private Placement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A and Series 2020B	            39,000,000
The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to finance the reimbursement of project costs related to a major 
modernization project which includes improvements and upgrades to existing buildings and the construction 
of a new building including a library and a student dormitory.  (March 4, 2020)

New York University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B (Federally Taxable)	                                                                   424,480,000
The Series 2020B Bonds were issued to refund a portion of DASNY’s New York University Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012A, 2012B, 2013A, and 2015A Bonds.  (March 10, 2020)

Columbia University Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A	                                                                                               150,000,000
The Series 2020A Bonds were issued to finance various design, construction and renovation projects 
throughout the University system. (March 19, 2020)

	                                                                                                               Total Bonds Issued                                 $9,798,992,000

Tax-Exempt Leasing Program (TELP)

TELP I (Health Care)

State University of New York University Hospital at Syracuse                                                                                               23,200,000
$23.2 million for nursing, imaging, surgical and information technology equipment.  (February 6, 
2019)

United Health Services Hospitals, Inc.                                                                                                                                      10,066,000
$10.1 million lease for cardiology, operating room, nursing, pharmacy, radiology and information 
technology equipment.  (May 9, 2019)

NYU Langone Hospitals                                                                                                                                                             13,177,894
$13.2 million lease for Information Technology / EPIC Systems. (December 19, 2019)

Total TELP I Leases                                                                                                                                                                  $46,443,894

Tax-Exempt Leasing Program II (Higher Education & Other Not-for-Profits)

NYSARC, Inc.                                                                                                                                                                             $10,741,105
$10.7 million lease for information technology, telecommunications, manufacturing and 
transportation equipment. (January 23, 2020)
                                                                                                                          Total TELP II Leases                                       $10,741,105

                                                                                                                         Grand Total TELP Leases                               $57,184,999



JONATHAN H. GARDNER, ESQ., Buffalo.

Jonathan H. Gardner was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 17, 
2014.  Mr. Gardner is a partner of the law firm Kavinoky Cook, LLP in Buffalo, New York.  
His practice areas include corporate and securities law, commercial transactions, 
private placements, venture capital financing and business combinations representing 
private and public companies.  Mr. Gardner is also an adjunct professor at the 
University of Buffalo Law School.  He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Brown 
University and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Chicago Law School.  Mr. 
Gardner’s term expired on March 31, 2015 and by law he continues to serve until a 
successor shall be chosen and qualified.

WELLINGTON Z. CHEN, Queens.

Wellington Z. Chen was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the Governor on June 20, 
2018.  Mr. Chen is the Executive Director of the Chinatown Partnership Development 
Corporation.  In this capacity, he leads the Chinatown Partnership in implementing 
initiatives in infrastructure, post 9/11 rebuilding and public space improvements in 
a comprehensive effort to improve the environmental and the business conditions. 
He is a graduate of the School of Architecture and Environmental Studies at The 
City College of New York.  Mr. Chen’s term expired on March 31, 2020 and by law he 
continues to serve until a successor shall be chosen and qualified.

JOAN M. SULLIVAN, Slingerlands.

Joan M. Sullivan was appointed as a Member of DASNY by the New York State 
Comptroller on March 26, 2019.  Ms. Sullivan is President of On Wavelength 
Consulting LLC, a firm that assists governmental entities with development of public 
procurements and private companies with the preparation of effective responses 
to government solicitations. She possesses over 40 years of experience working in 
and for the government of New York State, including an expansive career at the NYS 
Office of State Comptroller where she last served as Executive Deputy Comptroller 
before accepting an appointment as Executive Director of The NYS Forum, Inc.  Ms. 
Sullivan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Administration (Accounting) 
from Siena College.

GERARD ROMSKI, ESQ., Mount Kisco.

Gerard Romski was reappointed as a Member of DASNY by the Temporary President 
of the State Senate on May 9, 2016.  He is Counsel and Project Executive for “Arverne 
by the Sea,” where he is responsible for advancing and overseeing all facets of 
“Arverne by the Sea,” one of New York City’s largest mixed-use developments 
located in Queens, New York.  Mr. Romski is also of counsel to the New York City law 
firm of Rich, Intelisano & Katz, LLP.  Mr. Romski holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from 
the New York Institute of Technology and a Juris Doctor degree from Brooklyn Law 
School.  
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As of the close of DASNY’s fiscal year on March 31, 2020, the position of the Board Member 
appointed by the Speaker of the Assembly was vacant. On June 12, 2020, the Honorable Carl E. 
Heastie, Speaker of the Assembly, appointed Ms. Janice McKinnie of Buffalo, NY to fill this position. 



HOWARD A. ZUCKER, M.D., J.D., Commissioner of Health of the State of New York, 
Albany; ex-officio.

Howard A. Zucker, M.D., J.D., was appointed Commissioner of Health on May 5, 
2015 after serving as Acting Commissioner of Health since May 5, 2014.  Prior 
to that, he served as First Deputy Commissioner leading the State Department 
of Health’s preparedness and response initiatives in natural disasters and 
emergencies.  Before joining the State Department of Health, Dr. Zucker was 
professor of Clinical Anesthesiology at Albert Einstein College of Medicine of 
Yeshiva University and a pediatric cardiac anesthesiologist at Montefiore Medical 
Center.  He was also an adjunct professor at Georgetown University Law School 
where he taught biosecurity law.  Dr. Zucker earned his medical degree from 
George Washington University School of Medicine.  He also holds a Juris Doctor 
degree from Fordham University School of Law and a Master of Laws degree from 
Columbia Law School.

•	 Tracy Raleigh is the designated representative for the Department of Health.

SHANNON TAHOE, Acting Commissioner of Education of the State of New York, Cohoes; 
ex-officio. 

Shannon Tahoe assumed the role of Acting Commissioner of Education and Acting 
President of the University of the State of New York effective November 16, 2019.  Since 
September 2006, Ms. Tahoe has served in various capacities within the Department, 
including Deputy Counsel and Assistant Counsel for Legislation.  In October 2019, 
she was appointed Acting Counsel and Deputy Commissioner for Legal Affairs.  This 
appointment will continue to remain in effect along with her appointment as Acting 
Commissioner of Education and Acting President of the University of the State of 
New York.  Ms. Tahoe has provided legal advice and counsel on critical policy matters 
and key initiatives.  She is familiar with all aspects of the work of the Department, 
having managed the day-to-day operations of the Office of Counsel as Deputy Counsel 
and now Acting Counsel. During her tenure, Ms. Tahoe has also assisted with the 
successful management of a broad array of critical Departmental functions and 
responsibilities.  She holds a Juris Doctorate degree from Syracuse University and 
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Rochester.

•	 Brian Cechnicki is the designated representative for the State Education Department.

* Dr. Betty A. Rosa assumed the role of Interim Commissioner of Education and 
President of the University of the State of New York effective August 14, 2020.

ROBERT F. MUJICA, JR., Budget Director of the State of New York, Albany; ex-officio.

Robert F. Mujica Jr. was appointed Director of the Budget by the Governor and began 
serving on January 14, 2016.  He is responsible for the overall development and 
management of the State’s fiscal policy, including overseeing the preparation of 
budget recommendations for all State agencies and programs, economic and revenue 
forecasting, tax policy, fiscal planning, capital financing and management of the 
State’s debt portfolio.  Prior to his appointment, Mr. Mujica was Chief of Staff to the 
Temporary President and Majority Leader of the Senate and concurrently served 
as the Secretary to the Senate Finance Committee.  For two decades, he advised 
various elected and other government officials in New York on State budget, fiscal 
and policy issues.  Mr. Mujica received his Bachelor of Arts degree in Sociology from 
Brooklyn College at the City University of New York. He received his Master’s degree 
in Government Administration from the University of Pennsylvania and holds a Juris 
Doctor degree from Albany Law School.

•	 Adrian Swierczewski is the designated representative for the Division of Budget.
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REUBEN R. McDANIEL, III is the President and chief executive officer of DASNY, responsible for the 

overall management of DASNY’s administration and operations.  Mr. McDaniel possesses more than 

30 years of experience in financial services, including public finance, personal wealth management, 

corporate finance and private equity.  During his career in public finance, he participated in more than 

$75 billion in tax-exempt bond issuances throughout the country.  He has also managed investment 

portfolios and business assets for a variety of professionals.  He previously served as Chair of the 

Atlanta Board of Education for Public Schools.  Mr. McDaniel holds an undergraduate degree in 

Economics and Mathematics from the University of North Carolina at Charlotte and a Master of Business 

Administration from the University of Texas at Austin.

PAUL G. KOOPMAN is the Vice President of DASNY and assists the President in the administration 

and operation of DASNY.  Mr. Koopman joined DASNY in 1995 managing the Accounts Payable and 

Banking and Investment Units followed by management positions in the Construction Division including 

Managing Senior Director of Construction where he was the primary relationship manager for some of 

DASNY’s largest clients and provided oversight of DASNY’s construction administration functions.  Most 

recently, Mr. Koopman served as Managing Director of Executive Initiatives of DASNY where he worked 

closely with executive staff on policy development, enterprise risk management, and strategic planning.  

His career in public service began in 1985 with the NYS Division of the Budget, and then continued 

as Chief Budget Analyst for the New York State Facilities Development Corporation.  A graduate of 

the Rockefeller College of Public Affairs, he holds a Master of Arts degree in Public Administration 

with a Public Finance concentration, and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science from the State 

University of New York, University at Albany.

KIMBERLY J. NADEAU is the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of DASNY.  As Chief Financial Officer and 

Treasurer, Ms. Nadeau is responsible for supervising DASNY’s investment program, general accounting, 

accounts payable, accounts receivable, financial reporting functions, budget, payroll, insurance and 

information services, as well as the development and implementation of financial policies, financial 

management systems and internal controls for financial reporting.  She previously was Vice President-

Accounting and Controller for US Light Energy.  Prior to that she was Vice President-Accounting and 

Controller for CH Energy Group, Inc. and held various positions culminating in a director level position 

at Northeast Utilities.  Ms. Nadeau also held various positions with increasing responsibility at 

Coopers & Lybrand LLP.  She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting, a Master of Business 

Administration with a concentration in Management and a Juris Doctor degree from the University of 

Connecticut.  She is licensed to practice law in New York and Connecticut. 

* Ms. Nadeau served DASNY as CFO from November 2, 2015 until her retirement on Septempber 4, 2020.        

Kimberly Ellis was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of DASNY effective September 9, 2020.

MICHAEL E. CUSACK is General Counsel to DASNY.  Mr. Cusack is responsible for all legal services 

including legislation, litigation, contract matters, and the legal aspects of all DASNY financings.  In 

addition, he is responsible for the supervision of DASNY’s environmental affairs unit.  He is licensed 

to practice law in the State of New York and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as well as the 

United States District Court for the Northern District of New York.  Mr. Cusack has over twenty years 

of combined legal experience, including management of an in-house legal department and external 

counsel teams (and budgets) across a five-state region.  He most recently served as of counsel to the 

Albany, New York law firm of Young/Sommer, LLC, where his practice included representation of upstate 

New York municipalities, telecommunications service providers in the siting of public utility/personal 

wireless service facilities and other private sector clients.  He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from 

Siena College and a Juris Doctor degree from Albany Law School of Union University.
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Executive Staff



PORTIA LEE is the Managing Director of Public Finance and Portfolio Monitoring.  She is 
responsible for supervising and directing DASNY bond issuance in the capital markets, 
implementing and overseeing financing programs, overseeing DASNY’s compliance 
with continuing disclosure requirements and monitoring the financial condition of 
existing DASNY clients.  Ms. Lee previously served as Senior Investment Officer at the 
New York State Comptroller’s Office where she was responsible for assisting in the 
administration of the long-term fixed income portfolio of the New York State Common 
Retirement Fund, as well as the short-term portfolio, and the Securities Lending 
Program.  From 1995 to 2005, Ms. Lee worked at Moody’s Investors Service where she 
most recently served as Vice President and Senior Credit Officer in the Public Finance 
Housing Group.  She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the State University of New 
York at Albany.

STEPHEN D. CURRO is the Managing Director of Construction.  Mr. Curro is responsible 
for DASNY’s construction groups, including design, project management, resource 
acquisition, contract administration, interior design, real property, sustainability and 
engineering, as well as other technical services.  Mr. Curro joined DASNY in 2001 as 
Director of Technical Services, and most recently served as Director of Construction 
Support Services.  He is a registered Professional Engineer in New York and has worked 
in the construction industry for more than 30 years.  He holds a Bachelor of Science 
in Civil Engineering from the University of Rhode Island, a Master of Engineering in 
Structural Engineering from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and a Master of Business 
Administration from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute’s Lally School of Management.

CAROLINE V. GRIFFIN is the Chief of Staff of DASNY.  She is responsible for overseeing 
intergovernmental relations and managing the Communications & Marketing 
Department, as well as coordinating policy and operations across DASNY’s multiple 
business lines.  Ms. Griffin most recently served as the Director of Intergovernmental 
Affairs for Governor Andrew M. Cuomo where she worked as the Governor’s liaison 
with federal, state and local elected officials and managed staff serving in various 
capacities in the Governor’s Office.  Prior to that she served as the Assistant Executive 
Deputy Secretary for Governor Andrew M. Cuomo overseeing the operations staff and 
Assistant Secretary for Intergovernmental Affairs for both Governor David A. Paterson 
and Governor Eliot Spitzer.  She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Communications 
from Boston College.
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NGHP Holding Corporation 
A Subsidiary of the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York 

 
 

NGHP Holding Corporation (the “Corporation” or 
“NGHP”) is a separate public benefit corporation 
established as a subsidiary by the Dormitory 
Authority of the State of New York. NGHP has 
the authority, in accordance with Section 1678 
(25) of the Public Authorities Law, to hold title to, 
dispose of, and perform the functions of an 
owner of certain real and personal property 
formerly owned by North General Hospital 
(“NGH”). 
 
You may recall that on July 2, 2010, North 
General Hospital (“NGH”) filed a voluntary 
petition for relief under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. On June 22, 2011 the 
Bankruptcy Court issued an order (the 
“Confirmation Order”), confirming the Plan of 
Liquidation. 
 
In accordance with the Plan of Liquidation, on 
June 30, 2011, the Main Building, the Annex and 
the Parking Lot were conveyed to NGHP, and 
NGHP and the New York City Health and 
Hospitals Corporation (“HHC”) entered into a 
Lease Agreement (the “HHC Lease”), pursuant 
to which NGHP leased the Main Building to HHC 
to be renovated by HHC for use as a Long Term 
Acute Care Hospital (“LTACH”). On the same 
date, NGHP sold the Parking Lot to HHC for 
redevelopment as a skilled nursing facility and 
NGHP sold the Annex to the Institute for Family 
Health for use as a family practice center. In late 
December 2012, after the renovation of the 
Annex was completed, the family practice center 
was opened for business. 
 
Pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation and the 
Confirmation Order, a liquidation trustee (the 
“Liquidation Trustee”) appointed by the 
Bankruptcy Court liquidated all of the other 
assets of NGH and has since settled and paid 
the remaining claims of creditors. A portion of 
the proceeds of the sale of the properties noted 
above in the amount of $1,720,000, had been 
set aside in case it was needed to pay claims of 
creditors; the Liquidation Trustee determined 

these funds to be unnecessary for the payment 
of claims, and on October 30, 2013, they were 
used to redeem a portion of the DASNY Bonds 
issued for the benefit of North General Hospital. 
 
The Liquidation Trustee has since resolved all 
claims submitted by unsecured creditors, filed 
her final accounting with the Bankruptcy Court 
and the Bankruptcy case has been closed. One 
of the Liquidation Trustee’s final acts was 
executing an assignment to DASNY of any 
receivables due to North General Hospital. 
DASNY has received, and may receive further, 
small collection amounts. 
 
Current Activities 
 
Reconstruction and renovation work on the Main 
Hospital Building was completed and opened as 
a 210-bed LTACH in November 2013. The last 
rental payment made by HHC was received on 
July 30, 2019 and was for the period July 1, 
2017 through June 30, 2018. That rent was 
applied toward the February 15, 2020 
bondholder payment, with the State providing 
funds for the balance (83%) of principal and 
interest payment to bondholders. We have been 
in discussion with HHC about: (1) getting the 
payment due for the period July 1, 2018 through 
June 30, 2019 in time for the August 15, 2020 
interest- only bondholder payment and (2) 
getting the payment due for the period July 1, 
2019 through June 30, 2020 in the fall of 2020 to 
help fund the February 15, 2021 bondholder 
payment. Rental payments are based on the 
amount equal to all fee-for-service Medicaid 
capital cost reimbursement HHC receives from 
the NYSDOH attributable to the Lease. 
 
The North General Hospital bonds will mature 
on February 15, 2025. Once the bonds mature 
and the last rental payment is made to NGHP, 
the Leased Property shall be conveyed to HHC. 
At this time, the NGHP subsidiary will no longer 
be necessary and can be dissolved. 
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NGHP Holding Corporation (the “Corporation” or “NGHP”) is a separate public benefit corporation 
established as a subsidiary by the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York. NGHP has the authority, 
in accordance with Section 1678 (25) of the Public Authorities Law, to hold title to, dispose of, and 
perform the functions of an owner of certain real and personal property formerly owned by North General 
Hospital.  

On July 2, 2010, North General Hospital filed a voluntary petition for relief under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. On June 22, 2011 the Bankruptcy Court issued an order (the “Confirmation Order”), 
confirming the Plan of Liquidation.  

In accordance with the Plan of Liquidation, on June 30, 2011, the Main Building, the Annex and the 
Parking Lot were conveyed to NGHP, and NGHP and the New York City Health and Hospitals 
Corporation (“HHC”) entered into a Lease Agreement, pursuant to which NGHP leased the Main Building 
to HHC to be renovated by HHC for use as a Long Term Acute Care Hospital (“LTACH”). On the same 
date, NGHP sold the Parking Lot to HHC for redevelopment as a skilled nursing facility and NGHP sold 
the Annex to the Institute for Family Health for use as a family practice center. In late December 2012, 
after the renovation of the Annex was completed, the family practice center was opened for business.  

Pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation and the Confirmation Order, a liquidation trustee (the “Liquidation 
Trustee”) appointed by the Bankruptcy Court liquidated all of the other assets of North General Hospital 
and has since settled and paid the remaining claims of creditors. A portion of the proceeds of the sale of 
the properties noted above in the amount of $1,720,000, had been set aside in case it was needed to pay 
claims of creditors; the Liquidation Trustee determined these funds to be unnecessary for the payment of 
claims, and on October 30, 2013, the funds were used to redeem a portion of the DASNY Bonds issued 
for the benefit of North General Hospital.  

The Liquidation Trustee has since resolved all claims submitted by unsecured creditors, filed her final 
accounting with the Bankruptcy Court and the Bankruptcy case has been closed. One of the Liquidation 
Trustee’s final acts was executing an assignment to DASNY of any receivables due to North General 
Hospital. DASNY has received, and may receive further, small collection amounts.  

Current Activities  

Reconstruction and renovation work on the Main Hospital Building was completed and the 210-bed 
LTACH opened in November 2013. The last rental payment made by HHC was received on July 30, 2019 
and was for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. That rent was applied toward the February 
15, 2020 bondholder payment, with the State providing funds for the balance (83%) of principal and 
interest payment to bondholders. Rental payments are based on the amount equal to all fee-for-service 
Medicaid capital cost reimbursement HHC receives from the NYSDOH attributable to the Lease.  

The North General Hospital bonds will mature on February 15, 2025. Once the bonds mature and the last 
rental payment is made to NGHP, the Leased Property shall be conveyed to HHC. At that time, the NGHP 
subsidiary will no longer be necessary and can be dissolved.  
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Atlantic Avenue Healthcare Property Holding Corporation 
A Subsidiary of the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York 

 
 

Atlantic Avenue Healthcare Property Holding Corporation 
(“Atlantic Avenue”) is a separate public benefit corporation 
established as a subsidiary by the Dormitory Authority of the 
State of New York. Atlantic Avenue has the authority, in 
accordance with Section 1678 (25) of the Public Authorities 
Law, to hold title to, dispose of, and perform the functions of an 
owner of certain real and personal property formerly owned by 
Interfaith Medical Center (“IMC”).  
 
Interfaith Medical Center (“IMC” or Interfaith”) filed a petition 
under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code on December 2, 
2012. On June 11, 2014 the Bankruptcy Court confirmed a 
Chapter 11 Plan that became effective on June 19, 2014. The 
Chapter 11 Plan provided for, among other things, Atlantic to 
receive title to Interfaith’s real property and a restructured 
Interfaith (“New IMC”) to operate a hospital at the premises 
subject to a lease and related agreement with Atlantic. 
 
Current Activities 
 
To fund the ongoing operations following its emergence from 
Bankruptcy, New IMC has been receiving regular operating 
assistance from the State, including several Health Facility 
Restructuring Pool loans from 2015 through 2017. As a 
consequence of cash flow struggles in recent years, rent 
payments by New IMC were reduced with the consent of DOH 
in 2017 and again in 2018. Even with such reductions, rent 
payments were consistently late and ultimately stopped being 
made by New IMC in October 2018. As such, both the August 
15, 2019 bondholder interest-only payment and the larger 
principal and interest payment due on February 15, 2020 were 
made exclusively by NYS under the State Service Contract. 
We anticipate that the Corporation will receive little or no rental 
payments from New IMC in the next fiscal year. 
 
Only a few final claims remain involving the IMC Disbursing 
Trust related to the Bankruptcy. Once these claims are settled 
and the Bankruptcy case is closed, any unused funds can be 
returned to DASNY, which will then be used to offset IMC 
bondholder payments being made by the State under the 
Service Contract. The IMC bonds mature February 15, 2028. 
 
In March of 2017, the Department of Health and DASNY 
issued a Request for Applications (“RFA”) pursuant Public 
Health Law section 2825-a (Health Care Facility 
Transformation Program: Kings County Project), a new $700 
million capital grant program included in the enacted 2015-16 
State Budget to strengthen and protect continued access to 
health care services in communities of Kings County and 
create a financially sustainable system of care. On October 14, 
2016, New IMC, along with Brookdale Hospital Medical Center 
and Kingsbrook Jewish Medical Center, came together to form 
One Brooklyn Health System, Inc. (“OBHS”), for the purpose of 
participating in this grant opportunity. On January 31, 2018, 
OBHS received an award of up to $663,993,428 in capital 
funding from this program. New IMC is currently working with 
OBHS and its Member Hospitals to execute their 

transformation plan using funding from this program. As 
reported last year, the enacted 2019-20 State Budget included 
an amendment authorizing Atlantic Avenue Healthcare 
Property Holding Corporation to transfer four parcels pursuant 
to a plan to increase access and quality of health care services 
and preventative care and create affordable housing to 
transform Central Brooklyn (Public Authorities Law 1678[25][e] 
and [f], as amended by Part C of Chapter 58 of the Laws of 
2019): 
 

o 483-503 Herkimer Street; 
o 1028-1038 Broadway; 
o 528 Prospect Place; and 
o 1366 East New York Avenue. 

 
Such plan is subject to approval of the Commissioner of the 
New York State Division of Homes and Community Renewal 
(“DHCR”), the Commissioner of Health (“DOH”), and the 
Director of the Division of the Budget (“DOB”) in accordance 
with the legislation. 
 
This undertaking is pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s Vital 
Brooklyn policy initiative, a comprehensive program intended 
to break down barriers to health and well-being in an area of 
Central Brooklyn with measurably higher rates of obesity, 
diabetes and high blood pressure by, inter alia, improving 
access to healthy food sources, quality affordable housing, 
opportunities for physical activity, and high-quality health care 
and mental health services. 
 
Pursuant to Vital Brooklyn, DHCR has issued two Requests for 
Proposals for multiple parcels throughout Central Brooklyn, 
four of which are owned by Atlantic and used by New IMC. 
None of those parcels are on the main New IMC hospital 
campus. It is anticipated that, in addition to housing being 
constructed on the New IMC sites, clinical and administrative 
space would also be made available for use of New IMC and 
its corporate member/parent, One Brooklyn Health System. 
 
Although we understand that DHCR has selected developers 
for three of the four parcels owned by Atlantic and used by 
New IMC, timing and terms for transfer of the parcels are not 
clear at this time. We will likely come back to the Atlantic Board 
within the next year with more details about the proposed 
housing projects on IMC’s campus, while seeking any 
necessary Board approvals to convey certain land under the 
auspices of the Governor’s Vital Brooklyn initiative. 

Atlantic Avenue Healthcare Property Holding Corporation (“Atlantic Avenue”) is a separate public benefit corporation 
established as a subsidiary by the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York. Atlantic Avenue has the authority, in 
accordance with Section 1678 (25) of the Public Authorities Law, to hold title to, dispose of, and perform the functions of an 
owner of certain real and personal property formerly owned by Interfaith Medical Center. 
Interfaith Medical Center (“IMC” or Interfaith”) filed a petition under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code on December 
2, 2012. On June 11, 2014 the Bankruptcy Court confirmed a Chapter 11 Plan that became effective on June 19, 2014. 
The Chapter 11 Plan provided for, among other things, Atlantic Avenue to receive title to Interfaith’s real property and a 
restructured Interfaith (“New IMC”) to operate a hospital at the premises subject to a lease and related agreement with 
Atlantic Avenue. 
Current Activities: To fund the ongoing operations following its emergence from Bankruptcy, New IMC has been receiving 
regular operating assistance from the State, including several Health Facility Restructuring Pool loans from 2015 through 
2017. As a consequence of cash flow struggles in recent years, rent payments by New IMC were reduced with the consent 
of DOH in 2017 and again in 2018. Even with such reductions, rent payments have not been received from New IMC since 
October 2018. As such, both the August 15, 2019 bondholder interest-only payment and the larger principal and interest 
payment due on February 15, 2020 were made exclusively by NYS under the State Service Contract. 
Only a few final claims remain related to the Bankruptcy. Once these claims are settled and the Bankruptcy case is closed, 
any unused funds can be returned to DASNY, which will then be used to offset IMC bondholder payments being made by 
the State under the Service Contract. The IMC bonds mature February 15, 2028. 
In March of 2017, the Department of Health and DASNY issued a Request for Applications (“RFA”) pursuant to Public 
Health Law section 2825-a (Health Care Facility Transformation Program: Kings County Project), a new $700 million 
capital grant program included in the enacted 2015-16 State Budget to strengthen and protect continued access to health 
care services in communities of Kings County and create a financially sustainable system of care. On October 14, 2016, 
New IMC, along with Brookdale Hospital Medical Center and Kingsbrook Jewish Medical Center, came together to form 
One Brooklyn Health System, Inc. (“OBHS”), for the purpose of participating in this grant opportunity. On January 31, 2018, 
OBHS received an award of up to $663,993,428 in capital funding from this program. New IMC is currently working with 
OBHS and its Member Hospitals to execute the transformation plan funded by this program. 
The enacted 2019-20 State Budget included a provision authorizing Atlantic Avenue to transfer the following four parcels 
pursuant to a plan to increase access and quality of health care services and preventative care and create affordable 
housing to transform Central Brooklyn: 
• 483-503 Herkimer Street; 
• 1028-1038 Broadway; 
• 528 Prospect Place; and 
• 1366 East New York Avenue. 
Such plan is subject to approval of the Commissioner of the New York State Division of Homes and Community Renewal 
(“DHCR”), the Commissioner of the Department of Health (“DOH”), and the Director of the Division of the Budget (“DOB”) 
in accordance with the legislation. 
This undertaking is pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s Vital Brooklyn policy initiative, a comprehensive program intended 
to break down barriers to health and well-being in an area of Central Brooklyn with measurably higher rates of obesity, 
diabetes and high blood pressure by, among other things, improving access to healthy food sources, quality affordable 
housing, opportunities for physical activity, and high-quality health care and mental health services. 
Pursuant to Vital Brooklyn, DHCR has issued two Requests for Proposals for multiple parcels throughout Central 
Brooklyn, four of which are owned by Atlantic Avenue and used by New IMC. None of those parcels are on the main New 
IMC hospital campus. It is anticipated that, in addition to housing being constructed on the New IMC sites, clinical and 
administrative space would also be made available for use by New IMC and its corporate member/parent, One Brooklyn 
Health System.Timing and terms for transfer of the parcels are not presently known and are dependent in part upon the 
terms of the development proposals selected by DHCR. 
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DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Basic Financial Statements 

March 31, 2020 

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon) 



 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors 
Dormitory Authority of the State of New York: 

Report on the Basic Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Dormitory Authority of the State of New 
York (DASNY), a component unit of the State of New York, which comprise the statement of net position as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2020, and the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of DASNY, as of March 31, 2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with  
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

KPMG LLP
515 Broadway
Albany, NY 12207-2974
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on 
pages 3–24, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 59, the schedule of 
pension contributions on page 60, and the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related notes on 
page 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2020 on 
our consideration of DASNY’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of DASNY’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering DASNY’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

Albany, New York 
June 24, 2020 
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The following discussion and analysis of the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York’s (DASNY) financial 
performance provides an overview of DASNY’s activities as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020. It should 
be read in conjunction with DASNY’s financial statements that follow this section. This discussion and analysis 
is intended to serve as an introduction to DASNY’s basic financial statements, which are comprised of the 
financial statements and the notes to the financial statements. 

Background 
DASNY is a public benefit corporation, an independent corporate agency with governmental functions 
delegated to it by the State of New York (the State), and is authorized to finance, design, construct or 
rehabilitate buildings for use by various public and private not-for-profit corporations. 

DASNY is governed by an eleven member Board composed of the Director of the Budget of the State, the 
Commissioner of Education of the State, the Commissioner of Health of the State, the State Comptroller or one 
member appointed by him or her, five members appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the 
Senate, one member appointed by the Temporary President of the State Senate, and one member appointed 
by the Speaker of the State Assembly. All bonds and notes issued by DASNY must also be approved by the 
New York State Public Authorities Control Board. 

DASNY Lines of Business 
DASNY’s two primary lines of business are debt issuance and construction management, which are supported 
by DASNY’s operating activities. Both lines of business derive the majority of their business from public clients 
(89% average over the last 5 years), the majority of which comes from our construction management activities 
(80% average over the last 5 years). 

As a part of its operating activities, DASNY also devotes significant efforts to the administration of grants 
authorized by the State and payable to a variety of public and private grantees from proceeds of bonds issued 
by DASNY. DASNY has a staff of approximately 510 located in three main offices (Albany, New York City and 
Buffalo) and at approximately 60 field sites across the State. DASNY provides services to various clients within 
two major categories: private institutions, which generally include clients qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code (e.g. not-for-profit healthcare clients and independent colleges, universities and 
other not-for-profit organizations), and public entities, which include the State University of New York (SUNY), 
the City University of New York (CUNY), New York State (NYS) agencies and municipal facilities. DASNY’s 
clients, both public and private, typically have alternatives to using the debt issuance and construction 
management services offered by DASNY. 

DASNY Operating Activities 
DASNY operating revenues primarily result from financing fees related to debt issuances, annual administrative 
fees related to ongoing bond management, and construction fees related to project management and other 
construction-related services provided. Generally, private institutions and the State’s mental hygiene program 
pay a financing fee upon issuance of the bonds and notes and an ongoing annual administrative fee throughout 
the term of the bonds and notes based on a percentage of either the original par amount or the par amount 
outstanding, depending on the fee structure in place when the bonds or notes were issued. Other public clients 
(e.g., CUNY, SUNY, NYS agencies, and court facilities) pay financing and administrative fees in amounts equal 
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to their respective allocable share of DASNY operating expenses applicable to financing and ongoing bond 
management activities. Construction fees for public and private clients are generally equal to the allocable 
amount of DASNY operating expenses attributable to the construction services provided. 

Construction Management 
DASNY’s Construction Management business consists of two levels of service – DASNY-Managed and 
reimbursement based (Certified Construction). 

For DASNY-Managed projects, these services include direct project management as well as ancillary services 
including design preparation and review, bidding, negotiating, and administering contracts for construction, 
acquisition of furniture, fixtures and equipment, and on-site project management. DASNY generally provides 
project management services on the projects that are funded from bonds and notes issued by DASNY on 
behalf of most of its public clients. DASNY also provides its Construction Management services to certain other 
public clients, with the cost of such projects funded from amounts provided by the clients. DASNY’s statutorily 
authorized client base continues to grow. At any given time, DASNY actively manages 600-1,000 projects of 
varying sizes ranging from several thousand dollars to several hundred million dollars. 

Certified Construction Disbursements represent disbursements for projects where DASNY does not provide 
any construction services, but rather, the individual clients manage the construction and DASNY reimburses 
the clients for expenditures made. This category includes construction disbursements made on behalf of most 
not-for-profit healthcare, independent colleges, universities, and other not-for-profit organizations, as well as 
SUNY educational facilities, certain State grant programs, public school districts, Boards of Cooperative 
Educational Services (BOCES) and Special Act School Districts. 

Debt Issuance 
DASNY is a conduit debt issuer. Under existing law, and assuming continuing compliance, interest on most 
bonds and notes issued by DASNY has been determined to be excludable from gross income for federal tax 
purposes. DASNY issues debt for three purposes, for both its public and private clients: 

New money debt – to fund new money projects and grants; 

Refunding debt – to refund previously issued DASNY bonds; and 

Refinancing debt – to refund or refinance non-DASNY bonds and commercial loans 

Debt Issuance activities also include various types of bond retirements: 

Scheduled redemptions – bonds retired in accordance with their respective amortization schedules 

Refundings – bonds redeemed or defeased through DASNY’s issuance of refunding bonds; and 

Defeasances and early redemptions – bonds redeemed or defeased with: 

1. funds deposited by institutions of which some amounts have been funded through the issuance of 
debt by other issuers or financial institutions; 



DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
March 31, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

 5 (Continued) 

2. proceeds from the sale of mortgages securing the related bonds; or 

3. existing assets in bond accounts. 

As a means to lower borrowing costs for the State and New York City (the City) and to cost effectively support 
their strategies to diversify their debt portfolios with a combination of fixed and variable rate debt and more 
closely match their assets and liabilities, DASNY enters into interest rate swap agreements at various times. 
DASNY’s swaps are undertaken as a part of the State’s and City’s overall debt management programs. DASNY 
is only obligated to make swap payments from monies paid to it by the State or City pursuant to lease and 
financing agreements related to the State and City-supported bonds. More detailed information regarding 
DASNY’s interest rate exchange agreements, including their requirements and risks, are presented in notes 7 
and 8 to the basic financial statements. 

All of DASNY’s outstanding bonds and notes are special obligations payable solely from payments required to 
be made by or for the account of the client for which the particular special obligations were issued. Such 
payments are pledged or assigned to the trustees for the holders of the respective special obligations. DASNY 
has no obligation to pay its special obligations other than from such payments. In addition, certain bond and 
note issues are also secured by other forms of credit enhancement, including municipal bond insurance and 
bank letters of credit. DASNY monitors the ratings of credit enhancers and takes appropriate actions as 
required under the provisions of the related bond documents. DASNY also works closely with its clients to 
identify and implement strategies, including refunding bonds, converting interest rate modes, and adding or 
substituting liquidity facilities, to mitigate the effects of market changes as well as downgrades to credit 
enhancer ratings. See note 7 to the basic financial statements for a further discussion of bonds and notes 
outstanding. 

Executive Summary 
At DASNY, we are continuously evolving to meet the needs of our clients and support New York State’s 
initiatives to make New York State a better place to live, work and learn. During 2020 DASNY continued its One 
DASNY initiative, streamlining operations and reaching out to clients who had not worked with DASNY for a 
number of years to review the changes. This helped to increase the volume of bond issuances in 2020. 

DASNY continued expanding its construction services line of business in support of several important New 
York State and SUNY initiatives. 

DASNY continued its work on a new 262-bed residential building for New York State’s Office of Mental 
Health’s (OMH) South Beach Psychiatric Center. The new building has been designed to withstand the 
wind damage the campus sustained during Superstorm Sandy while providing modern patient care by 
maximizing opportunities for connections between care givers and their patients. At the close of the current 
fiscal year, the building was nearing substantial completion. 

During this fiscal year, DASNY provided approximately 3,000 hours of code permitting services for the 
Moynihan Station and Javits Convention Center Expansion Projects, bringing the cumulative total to 
approximately 14,000 hours. The Moynihan Station project is targeted for completion in calendar year 2020 
while the Javits Expansion project is targeted for the first quarter of 2021. 
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DASNY completed a relocation of SUNY Albany’s state-of-the-art Health & Counseling Services Center 
into an on-campus location as part of a large dormitory renovation project totaling more than $33 million. 
The relocation will provide students with on-campus access to heath, wellness and psychological services; 
a first of its kind on a SUNY campus. 

DASNY began construction of a new 257-bed zero-net, carbon-certified residence hall at SUNY Poly’s 
Utica campus. The design for the new residence hall meets the State’s aggressive clean energy goals and 
will be the first of its kind on the campus. As a zero-net, carbon-certified building, in addition to exceeding 
energy goals, the infrastructure to add future on-site renewable energy production systems will be in place. 
Once these systems are installed, the building will use equal to or less than the energy annually it can 
produce on-site through renewable resources. The $33.5 million project is expected to open in August for 
the upcoming school year. 

DASNY’s debt issuance activities had a recording-breaking year, issuing over $9.7 billion in debt, an increase 
of $1 billion, compared with the prior year. The increase was due primarily to increased issuances from both 
public and private clients. Total outstanding bonds and notes balance was approximately $58 billion as of 
March 31, 2020. 

Overview of Basic Financial Statements 
DASNY is considered a special-purpose government entity engaged in business-type activities and follows 
financial reporting for enterprise funds. The basic financial statements provide information about DASNY’s 
overall financial condition. The notes provide explanations and more details about the content of the basic 
financial statements. 

DASNY has elected the option under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Interpretation No. 2, 
Disclosure of Conduit Debt Obligations, to report conduit debt in its basic financial statements. Pursuant to this 
election, DASNY’s basic financial statements are a compilation of approximately 2,000 separate self-balancing 
accounts related to both the individual series of outstanding bonds and notes and the individual operating 
accounts for nonbonded projects, various special purposes and operations. DASNY does not commingle cash 
and investments. 

As a result of the inclusion of conduit debt, the majority of the activity reflected in the financial statements does 
not reflect DASNY’s own financial position or health. Rather, the vast majority of activity reflected in the basic 
financial statements relates to: 

1. monies held in the restricted accounts associated with the issuance of bonds and notes; 

2. the collection of monies in accordance with the provisions of the underlying loan or financing 
agreements; 

3. the payments to the holders of the bonds and notes in accordance with the provisions of the underlying 
bond and note resolutions; and 

4. disbursements for construction and other loan activity. 
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This report consists of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis, financial statements, the notes to the 
financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three financial statements presented are as 
follows: 

• Statement of Net Position – This statement presents information reflecting DASNY’s assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Net position represents the 
amount of total assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
and is one way to measure DASNY’s financial position. Net position is comprised of Unrestricted Net 
Position, related to DASNY’s operating activities, Restricted Net Position, related to monies held in the 
restricted bond and note accounts, and Net Investment in Capital Assets, primarily related to its Albany 
headquarters building. Restricted Net Position remains in the accounts of each of the individual bond or 
note issues and accrues to the benefit of the respective client institutions. At final maturity, the restricted 
net position of an individual bond or note issue will be zero ($0). 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – This statement reflects DASNY’s 
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses for each year. The majority of DASNY’s revenue and 
expense activity does not relate to operations; rather it relates to activity in the restricted accounts of the 
individual series of bonds and notes. In some years, revenues exceed expenses in restricted bond and 
note accounts. In other years, expenses exceed revenues in restricted bond and note accounts as 
accumulated revenues are utilized for various purposes. Restricted Net Position remains in each of the 
individual bond or note issues and accrues to the benefit of the respective client institutions. 

• Statement of Cash Flows – The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method of reporting 
which reflects cash flows from operating, noncapital financing, capital financing, and investing activities. 
Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at the net increase or decrease in 
cash for the fiscal year. The statement also includes a reconciliation between operating gain or loss per the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position to net cash from operating activities per 
the Statement of Cash Flows. 

Discussion of DASNY Lines of Business Activities 
DASNY Operating Activities 

DASNY’s internal operating expenses totaled approximately $87 million during 2020 and 2019, of which 8% 
and 9% were allocable to private institutions, while 92% and 91% were allocable to public programs. 

DASNY’s personal service expenses totaled approximately $77 million during 2020 and 2019, of which 79% 
were associated with Construction Management activities for both years. 
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Debt Issuance Activities 

Bonds and Notes Issued 

As the charts below illustrate, DASNY’s Debt Issuance activity includes new money, refundings and 
refinancings with approximately 65% of the activity coming from public clients. During 2020, the par value of 
bonds issued increased approximately $1 billion due to increases in refundings, partially offset by reductions in 
new money and refinancing issuances. The increase in refundings was the result of lower activity in the prior 
year following changes in federal tax laws related to tax-exempt bonds in 2018. The charts on the following 
page provide additional detail regarding the three types of issuances by client type. 

The increases in new money and refunding issuances from private in conjunction with issuances for public 
clients remaining largely unchanged from the prior year drove a shift in the public-to-private proportion, with the 
public share decreasing from 71% in 2019 to 65% in 2020. 

Par Amount of Bonds and Notes Issued ($in millions) 
These amounts vary from the amounts reflected in Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds and Notes on the Statement of Cash Flows due to the 
inclusion of the net premium received on the bonds and notes issued in the Statement of Cash Flows. 
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Refundings ($in millions) 

 

Refinancings ($in millions) 
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Bonds and Notes Retired 

Bond retirements were $2.2 billion higher in 2020, primarily due to a higher level of refundings. As shown in the 
charts below, refundings of DASNY bonds contributed over 50% of DASNY’s bond retirement activity in 2020, 
compared with 32% in the prior year driven by both public and private clients. 

Par Amount of Bonds Retired ($in millions) 

  

The amount refunded by DASNY presented above varies from the amount of refunding debt issued shown in the previous chart due to 
several factors. Original issue premium on the new bonds issued, balances available in existing bond accounts, and lower interest rates on 
the new bonds as compared to interest rates on the prior bonds each reduce the amount of new bonds required to refund the prior bonds. 
The need to fund bondholder interest on the prior bonds through the final redemption dates increases the amount of new bonds required to 
refund prior bonds. Generally, the amount of refunding debt issued by DASNY is less than the amount of bonds refunded by DASNY. 
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Scheduled Redemptions by Client Type ($in millions) 

 

Refunded by DASNY Bonds by Client Type ($in millions) 
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Defeasances & Early Redemptions by Client Type ($in millions) 

 

Bonds and Notes Outstanding 

As shown on the following page, approximately 70% of DASNY’s outstanding bonds and notes are related to its 
public clients, nearly 80% of that portion related to NYS agencies and SUNY. During 2020, the outstanding 
balance increased $3.3 billion (6%). (See note 7 to the basic financial statements for more detailed 
information.) 
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Bonds and Notes Outstanding by Program as of March 31 
($in millions) 

 

 

The following three charts show the rollforward of Bonds and Notes Outstanding as of March 31, 2019 and 
March 31, 2020. Net New Money is the net balance of New Money and Scheduled Redemptions, Net 
Refundings is the net balance of Refundings and Refunded by DASNY bonds, and Net Refinancings is the net 
balance of Refinancings and Defeasances & Early Redemptions. 

As shown on the following page, the increase in Bonds and Notes Outstanding as of March 31, 2020 was due 
primarily to the increases of Net New Money from both public and private clients. Consistent with their 
proportionate share of the total bonds outstanding, public clients accounted for approximately 70% of 2020’s 
increase in outstanding debt. 

71%
$38,904

29%
$16,051

71%
$41,212

29%
$17,004

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

Public Private

2019 $54,955
2020 $58,216

Totals

$18,321 

$11,850 

$5,045 
$3,688 

$12,228 

$3,823 

$19,866 

$12,391 

$5,083 
$3,872 

$12,546 

$4,458 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

NYS Agencies SUNY CUNY Munis Independents Healthcare

2019 $54,955

2020 $58,216

Public Totals
2019 $38,904
2020 $41,212

Private Totals
2019 $16,051
2020 $17,004

Totals



DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
March 31, 2020 

(Unaudited) 

 14 (Continued) 

Bonds and Notes Outstanding Rollforward as of March 31 
($in millions) 
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Construction Management Activities 

As described in the Background section, DASNY’s Construction Management activities consist of two types of 
disbursements – reimbursements to clients for projects they manage internally (Certified Construction 
Disbursements) and vendor payments for projects DASNY manages (DASNY-Managed Projects). As shown 
below, the majority (87% in 2020) come from reimbursements to clients for their internally managed projects. 
From a customer perspective, DASNY’s Construction Management activities are concentrated (78% in 2020 
and 86% 2019) with its public clients. During 2020, decreased requests for reimbursement from public clients 
for Certified Construction Disbursements of approximately $1.4 billion drove the overall decrease in activity 
between 2019 and 2020. This decrease, combined with a $0.3 billion increase in private clients increased the 
private clients’ proportionate share of total construction expenditures to 22% in 2020 from 14% in 2019. 

Construction and Loan Disbursements* ($in millions) 

   

* Included in the captions “Construction, Loan and Other Disbursements” and “Project Funds Disbursed” on the Statement of Cash 
Flows. These captions also included loan payoffs, defeasance of non-DASNY debt, costs of issuance, and capitalized fees and 
expenses. 
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The charts below and on the next page provide additional detail regarding the two types of construction 
disbursements, by client type. They show that even within the public clients there is a clear concentration of 
business, with nearly half of DASNY’s Construction Management activities coming from NYS Agencies. 

In 2020 and 2019, Certified Construction Disbursements for NYS Agencies and SUNY programs totaled 
$3.6 billion and $5.1 billion, respectively, accounting for approximately 72% and 84% of the Certified 
Disbursements in each year and over half of each year’s total construction disbursements. The decrease of 
$1.5 billion was primarily due to fewer reimbursements requests from the State for projects managed by the 
SUNY Construction Fund during 2020. 

Certified Construction Disbursements by Program ($in millions) 

 

While the DASNY-Managed Projects represent only 13% of the total construction disbursements, this activity is 
significant in terms of DASNY’s operations. At any point in time, DASNY is actively managing 600-1,000 
construction projects with the personnel needed to support this work accounting for more than 79% of DASNY’s 
operating expenses. DASNY generates fees from these clients that are generally equal to the allocable amount 
of DASNY operating expenses attributable to the construction services provided. 
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Construction Disbursements for DASNY- Managed Projects by Program ($in millions) 
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Financial Analysis 

Statement of Net Position 

As shown by the red boxes in the charts below, and as described in the Background section, DASNY’s conduit 
debt comprises the majority of DASNY’s Statement of Net Position, making up nearly all of the Assets 
(the majority of the cash, cash equivalents and investments are related to conduit debt) and Liabilities and more 
than two-thirds of the Net Position balances. 

Condensed Summary of Net Position as of March 31 ($in millions) 
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Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
DASNY’s assets are comprised primarily of (1) Leases and Loans Receivable, and (2) Cash, Cash Equivalents 
and Investments. The balance of DASNY’s assets include (1) Accrued Financing Income Receivable, 
(2) DASNY’s capital assets and those of its subsidiary Atlantic Avenue Holding Corporation, and (3) Other 
Assets. 

Leases and Loans Receivable represents accumulated construction costs for each project, net of principal 
repayments from clients, client contributions, and investment earnings on construction accounts. When a 
project is completed, the receivable will equal the bonds or notes outstanding net of any bond proceeds 
deposited in reserve accounts. Potential fluctuations result primarily from the timing of disbursements for 
construction, loan, and other disbursements versus receipts of principal on leases and loans receivable, project 
contributions and income on investments in construction accounts. (See note 4 to the financial statements for 
more detailed information.) 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments primarily represent monies held for construction, reserves, or for 
payment of debt service on outstanding bonds and notes. Such monies are held in trust by a trustee bank for 
the benefit of bondholders. DASNY generally records investments at fair value. Fluctuations result primarily 
from differences between the timing of receipt of proceeds from new money bond issues and the disbursement 
of those proceeds for construction and other activities. 
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As highlighted in the chart below, DASNY’s investment portfolio consists primarily (nearly 85%) of funds for 
(1) construction projects and grant programs financed by DASNY-issued bonds, and (2) debt service 
obligations. (See note 3 to the basic financial statements for more detailed information.) Investment balances 
decreased by approximately $900 million (18%) during 2020 primarily due to a lower level of prepayments of 
debt service obligations by the State. 

Investment Balances by Purpose as of March 31* ($in millions) 

 

* An additional $957 million and $279 million of money market funds as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, managed by DASNY 
is reflected in the Statement of Net Position as a component of Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

Accrued Financing Income Receivable represents the amount of interest on bonds and notes due from clients 
since the last client loan repayment date through DASNY’s fiscal year end. Fluctuations result from accrued 
interest payable on new bond issues, changes in the balance of capital appreciation bonds, the conversion of 
variable rate bonds to fixed rate bonds and changes in the interest rate environment. 

Capital assets represent the capital assets of a DASNY subsidiary (Atlantic Avenue Holding Corporation) and 
DASNY’s Albany headquarters building (DASNY’s Buffalo headquarters building is fully depreciated). Capital 
assets of DASNY’s other subsidiary (NGHP Holding Corporation) are not reflected within this balance as the 
terms of this lease meet the criteria of a direct financing lease, and accordingly, is included in Other 
Receivables. DASNY’s interest in capital assets financed through the issuance of bonds and notes on behalf of 
clients is recorded on the Statement of Net Position as a component of Leases and Loans Receivable. (See 
note 5 to the basic financial statements for more detailed information.) 
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Other Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources include project funds receivables, accrued interest 
receivable on investments, deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and postemployment benefits, 
and other receivables. 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
DASNY’s Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources are comprised primarily of Bonds and Notes 
Outstanding. The balance of DASNY’s liabilities include (1) Accrued Interest Payable, and (2) Other Liabilities 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources. 

Accrued Interest Payable represents interest due, but not yet paid, to the holders of outstanding bonds and 
notes from the last interest payment date through DASNY’s fiscal year-end. Fluctuations result from accrued 
interest payable on new bond issues offset by a net decrease in the balance of capital appreciation bonds 
outstanding due to scheduled maturities as well as changes in the interest rate environment. 

Other Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources include accounts payable, amounts due to NYS, unearned 
financing income, amounts held for institutions, deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
unearned fees. 

Net Position 
DASNY’s net position consists primarily of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Positions, as well as its Net 
Investment in Capital Assets. 

Restricted Net Position relates to activity in the bonds and note accounts and is the largest component of 
DASNY’s Net Position, accounting for 77% of the total. The balance decreased $67 million during 2020 
primarily due to bond interest expense paid using prior year debt service payments and interest income and 
lower financing income from independent institutions due to the timing of debt service payments on outstanding 
debt. 

Unrestricted Net Position relates to DASNY’s operating activities and accounts for 15% of DASNY’s Net 
Position. The balance of $27 million remained stable in 2020. The related assets include unrestricted cash and 
investments, including monies available to assist healthcare clients and program development accounts. 

Net Investment in Capital Assets primarily relates to DASNY’s headquarters building and related furniture and 
equipment. 

Statement of Net Position – 2020 Activity 
DASNY’s Statement of Net Position decreased $67 million primarily due to the change in Restricted Net 
Position described above. 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

As shown on the charts on the next page, the majority of DASNY’s revenues and expenses relates to activity 
associated with the bonds and notes DASNY issues rather than its own operations. The revenues generated in 
restricted bond and note accounts accumulate until needed. In some years, revenues exceed expenses in 
restricted bond and note accounts, usually as a result of income on investments and contributions of cash and 
investments. In other years, expenses exceed revenues in restricted bond and note accounts as accumulated 
revenues are utilized, usually for payment of debt service, redemption of bonds and notes or transfers to 
escrow in connection with refundings. 

The activity associated with the bonds and notes DASNY issues is reflected in the following categories: 

1. Financing Income – interest payments from clients 

2. Income on Investments – primarily income on restricted bond and note accounts other than 
construction accounts which is reflected in the Statement of Net Position as a component of Leases 
and Loans Receivable since the earnings are generally used for project costs 

3. Other Revenues – primarily income on investments transferred from construction accounts and 
contributions of cash and investments. 

4. Interest on Bonds and Notes – interest payments to bondholders 

5. Other Expenses – primarily transfers of accumulated Restricted Net Position and current year revenues 
to escrow in connection with refundings, amounts returned to institutions, reductions of leases and 
loans receivable due to redemption of bonds, arbitrage expense, program expenses and administrative 
fees paid from restricted accounts. 

Financing Income and Income on Investments on certain restricted bond and note accounts are used to pay 
interest on bonds and notes. 

Fluctuations in Other Revenues reflect the relative amounts of contributions deposited to meet reserve 
requirements along with investment income available in construction accounts and transferred to other 
restricted bond and note accounts. 

DASNY’s operating activity is primarily reflected in the following categories: 

1. Fees for Services – financing fees and annual administrative fees related to ongoing bond 
management and construction services; and 

2. Costs of Operations (Personal Service, Employee Benefits, Maintenance and Operations) – primarily 
for employee service and related benefits and taxes 
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Condensed Summary of Revenue and Expenses as of March 31 ($in millions) 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - 2020 Activity 
Financing Income and Interest on Bonds and Notes increased due to bond issuance activity during 2020. 

Income on Investments held for institutions of $100 million was unchanged in 2020. 

Fees for Services of $102 million increased $3 million primarily due to a higher volume of bond issuances in 
2020. 

Other Revenue decreased $18 million, or 41% due to a decrease of $8 million in Contributions of Cash and 
Investments and a $10 million decrease in Other Revenue. The reductions were mainly due to the decrease of 
assets received from institutions for redemptions and proceeds from property sales for restricted funds and 
lower revenue from NGHP and Atlantic Avenue, lower reimbursement of legal fees from NYS Agencies and 
lower allocations associated with accrued leave and Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
for operating funds. 

Personal Service and Employee Benefits, increased by $0.9 million (1%) during 2020, primarily due to higher 
pension expense due to changes in expected earnings on pension plan investments partially offset by a 
reduction in the accrued leave liability as a result of an increase in retirements. 

Maintenance and Operations Expenses increased $1.3 million (5%) in 2020, primarily due to higher legal fees. 

Other Expenses increased $19 million, or 31% primarily due to an increase of $7 million in funds returned to 
Institutions and an increase of $11 million in Other Expenses driven by an increase in transfers to escrow in 
connection with bond refundings and defeasances for SUNY. 

Request for Information 
DASNY’s corporate headquarters is located at 515 Broadway, Albany, New York 12207-2964. The main 
telephone number is 518-257-3000. DASNY maintains an internet website which can be accessed from the 
following address www.dasny.org. 

All required secondary market disclosures for DASNY’s private not for profit clients are done through Digital 
Assurance Certification LLC (DAC) which can be accessed through the following website: www.dacbond.com. 
All required secondary market disclosures for DASNY’s public clients are available on the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board’s (MSRB’s) Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website which can be accessed 
through the following website: www.emma.msrb.org. DASNY also provides additional information on its website 
at www.dasny.org. In addition, while certain information pertaining to DASNY’s debt issuances for certain of 
DASNY’s public clients is available on the DAC website, DASNY, the bond trustee and the applicable client 
each have responsibilities with respect to the filing of material event notices and providing updated financial 
and operational data with EMMA. 



DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 1,146,231  
Investments (note 3) 693,304  
Leases and loans receivable, net (note 4) 4,336,021  
Project funds receivable 158,768  
Accrued financing income receivable 265,338  
Accrued interest receivable on investments 5,346  
Other receivables (note 2g) 38,646  

Total current assets 6,643,654  

Investments (note 3) 3,362,130  
Leases and loans receivable, net (note 4) 50,844,810  
Project funds receivable 54,161  
Other receivables (notes 2g and 12) 168,821  
Capital assets, net (note 5) 32,249  

Total assets 61,105,825  

Deferred outflows of resources (note 2i, 11 and 12) 24,713  

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 61,130,538  

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,066,432  
Bonds and notes outstanding (notes 6 and 7) 4,423,162  
Accrued interest payable 512,880  
Unearned financing income 42,171  
Amounts held for institutions (note 6) 348,530  
Due to New York State (note 6) 134,430  
Current portion of other long-term liabilities (note 6) 5,031  
Unearned fees for services 49,032  

Total current liabilities 6,581,668  

Bonds and notes outstanding (notes 6 and 7) 53,792,488  
Amounts held for institutions (note 6) 286,584  
Due to New York State (note 6) 12,589  
Other long-term liabilities (note 6) 273,044  

Total liabilities 60,946,373  

Deferred inflows of resources (note 2i, 11 and 12) 9,503  

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $ 60,955,876  

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (note 5) $ 11,974  
Restricted 135,647  
Unrestricted (note 13) 27,041  

Total net position $ 174,662  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year ended March 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Operating revenues:
Financing income $ 2,409,384  
Income on investments held for institutions 99,501  
Fees for services 102,009  
Contributions of cash and investments 6,677  
Other 18,806  

Total operating revenues 2,636,377  

Operating expenses:
Interest on bonds and notes 2,510,111  
Amounts returned to institutions 28,090  
Reduction of leases and loans receivable due to redemption of bonds 14,293  
Personal service and employee benefits 88,768  
Maintenance and operations 25,638  
Other 38,197  

Total operating expenses 2,705,097  

Operating loss (68,720) 

Nonoperating revenues:
Income on investments held for DASNY 1,327  

Decrease in net position (67,393) 

Net position, beginning of year 242,055  

Net position, end of year $ 174,662  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Fees for services $ 101,747  
Amounts received from institutions 7,397  
Project funds received 366,404  
Dormitory rent receipts 628,290  
Permit and patient income receipts 1,822,595  
Special purpose healthcare loan receipts 102,133  
Other receipts 17,690  
Personal service and employee benefits (77,559) 
Maintenance and operations (27,799) 
Permit and patient income transferred to New York State (1,820,474) 
Project funds disbursed (381,838) 
Dormitory rent disbursements (612,733) 
Amounts returned to institutions (12,627) 
Special purpose healthcare loan disbursements (80,377) 
Other disbursements (30,237) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,612  

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes 10,941,121  
Amounts transferred to escrow to defease debt (3,163,512) 
Principal repayments of bonds and notes (2,986,635) 
Interest paid on bonds and notes (2,558,015) 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,232,959  

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (1,432) 

Net cash used in capital financing activities (1,432) 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (23,805,431) 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 24,675,990  
Income on investments 140,344  
Construction, loan, and other disbursements (6,707,678) 
Principal receipts on leases and loans receivable 2,155,000  
Financing income 1,805,671  

Net cash used in investing activities (1,736,104) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 498,035  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 648,196  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,146,231  

(Continued)27



DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Operating loss $ (68,720) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 2,373  
Interest on bonds and notes 2,510,111  
Income on investments held for institutions (99,501) 
Financing income (2,409,384) 
Reduction of leases and loans receivable due to redemption of bonds 14,293  
Investment transfers (1,479) 
Amounts transferred to escrow to defease debt 19,612  
Other expenses 3,002  
Change in assets and liabilities:

Increase in leases and loans receivable (7,837) 
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources 6,990  
Decrease in project funds receivable 19,265  
Increase in other receivables (4,438) 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other long-term liabilities,

net of construction funds 15,184  
Decrease in due to New York State (13,213) 
Increase in amounts held for institutions 25,271  
Decrease in unearned fees for services (3,390) 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources (5,527) 

Total adjustments 71,332  

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,612  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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(1) DASNY 
The Dormitory Authority of the State of New York (DASNY) is a public benefit corporation established in 
1944 and is governed by Title 4 and 4B, Article 8 of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York. 
DASNY is an independent corporate agency with governmental functions delegated to it by the State of 
New York (the State). It is not a municipal corporation. DASNY employees are not employees of the State 
or of a civil service division thereof. 

DASNY was established by the State as a public benefit corporation for the purpose of financing, 
designing, constructing, purchasing, reconstructing, and/or rehabilitating buildings (projects), including the 
acquisition of equipment, for a variety of public and private institutions. The private institutions for which 
DASNY is authorized to provide these services consist of colleges and universities, hospitals, nursing 
homes and various other entities that are specifically enumerated in DASNY’s enabling legislation. The 
public institutions for which DASNY is authorized to provide these services include various agencies of the 
State, the City University of the City of New York (the City), the State University of the State of New York 
(SUNY), local school districts, cities and counties with respect to certain court and municipal facilities and 
for various other purposes as authorized by law. DASNY has also established lease financing programs 
that are used to finance the acquisition of equipment for various clients. DASNY is also authorized by 
statute to finance directly or indirectly certain student loans and on behalf of the State, to fund and 
administer grants to various public and private entities. To accomplish its purpose, DASNY has the power 
to borrow money and to issue negotiable bonds or notes, in conformity with the applicable provisions of the 
Uniform Commercial Code, and to provide for the rights of the holders of such debt instruments. DASNY’s 
obligations are not a debt of the State. All bonds and notes issued by DASNY are subject to the approval of 
the Public Authorities Control Board of the State. 

DASNY is authorized pursuant to Section 1678 (25) of the Public Authorities Law to establish subsidiaries 
for the purpose of limiting its potential liability when exercising its powers and duties in pursuit of remedies 
against a borrower that has defaulted in its obligations under a loan agreement or mortgage with DASNY. 

On March 17, 2011, NGHP Holding Corporation (NGHP) was established as a subsidiary of DASNY in the 
form of a public benefit corporation as a result of North General Hospital’s default under its loan 
agreements and mortgages with DASNY. North General Hospital filed a petition in bankruptcy and NGHP 
acquired certain real property assets subject to certain liabilities of North General Hospital on June 30, 
2011 in accordance with the plan of liquidation approved by the Bankruptcy Court. NGHP is included in 
these basic financial statements as a blended component unit as DASNY’s governing board serves as the 
governing board of NGHP and DASNY management has operational responsibility for NGHP. 

On November 20, 2013, Atlantic Avenue Healthcare Property Holding Corporation (Atlantic Avenue) was 
established as a subsidiary of DASNY in the form of a public benefit corporation as a result of Interfaith 
Medical Center’s default under its loan agreements and mortgages with DASNY. Interfaith Medical Center 
filed a petition in bankruptcy and Atlantic Avenue acquired certain real property assets subject to certain 
liabilities of Interfaith Medical Center on June 19, 2014 in accordance with the plan of reorganization 
approved by the Bankruptcy Court. Atlantic Avenue is included in these basic financial statements as a 
blended component unit as DASNY’s governing board serves as the governing board of Atlantic Avenue 
and DASNY management has operational responsibility for Atlantic Avenue. 
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In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended, DASNY is included in the financial statements of the State as a 
discretely presented component unit. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(a) Basis of Reporting 

DASNY’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles for governments as prescribed by the GASB, which is the primary standard 
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
DASNY follows the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting for 
revenues and expenses whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized 
when obligations are incurred. 

The basic financial statements are a compilation of approximately 2,000 separate self balancing 
accounts, each related to either an individual series of outstanding bonds and notes or an individual 
operating account. 

DASNY has elected the option under GASB Interpretation No. 2, Disclosure of Conduit Debt 
Obligations, to report conduit debt in its basic financial statements, other than certain tax exempt 
equipment leases (see note 7(c)). DASNY’s more significant accounting policies are described below. 

DASNY’s primary operating revenue is financing income, representing interest on indebtedness, 
received from institutions. DASNY also recognizes as operating revenue the income on investments 
held for institutions, except interest earned on construction account investments. Income on 
investments in construction accounts is recorded as a reduction to leases and loans receivable since 
the earnings are generally used for project costs. Fees charged to institutions for services and certain 
remaining bond proceeds transferred from refunded issues are also recognized as operating revenue. 
Operating expenses for DASNY include the interest expense on bonds and notes, reduction of leases 
and loans receivable, which represents bonds redeemed with earnings, administrative expenses and 
amounts returned to institutions. 

The majority of DASNY’s revenues and expenses does not relate to operations, rather, it relates to 
activity in the restricted debt accounts of the individual series of bonds and notes. The revenues 
generated in restricted debt accounts accumulate until needed. In some years, revenues exceed 
expenses in restricted debt accounts, usually as a result of income on investments and contributions of 
cash and investments. In other years, expenses exceed revenues in restricted debt accounts as 
accumulated revenues are utilized, usually for payment of debt service, redemption of bonds and 
notes, transfers to escrow in connection with refundings or amounts returned to institutions. Restricted 
net position remains in each of the individual bond or note issues and accrues to the benefit of the 
client institutions. At final maturity, the restricted net position of an individual bond or note issue will be 
$0. 
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Any revenues and expenses that do not support DASNY’s primary business functions are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit and money market funds. 

(d) Investments 
Investments are recorded at fair value, other than certificates of deposit, which are recorded at cost. 
Changes in fair value are included in Income on Investments Held for Institutions and nonoperating 
Income on Investments Held for DASNY in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position, except for changes in fair value related to investments in the construction accounts, as 
described in note 2(e). 

(e) Leases and Loans Receivable 
Projects are financed primarily under either a lease (where the lease payments are pledged to the 
trustee for the benefit of the bondholders), a loan (where the loan payments are pledged to the trustee 
for the benefit of the bondholders), or other agreements, including service contracts and financing 
agreements with the State and municipalities, which provide for the payment of debt service dependent 
upon annual appropriation, or for which specific revenues have been pledged in support of a 
collateralized borrowing. Additionally, in certain instances, revenues of the institutions have been 
pledged under the terms of the respective bond resolutions and certain restricted amounts are required 
to be maintained with the trustee in accordance with such resolutions. 

Leases and Loans Receivable represents accumulated construction costs for projects financed through 
bond and note issues, net of principal repayments received from institutions, institution contributions, 
and income on investments on construction accounts. Income on investments, including changes in fair 
value, on construction accounts is recorded as a reduction to this receivable since the earnings are 
generally used for project costs. The disbursement of project costs financed with bond proceeds is 
recorded as an increase to this receivable. The principal portion of debt service received from 
institutions is recorded as a reduction to this receivable. Also included in this receivable are bond 
issuance costs and premium or discount on the debt issued. 

Interest paid from bond proceeds during the construction period, capitalized interest, is recorded as an 
increase to the receivables. Capitalized interest was approximately $53 million for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2020. Income earned on construction fund investments during the construction period is 
recorded as a reduction of the receivables. Construction fund investment income was approximately 
$41 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020. 

Leases and Loans Receivable, together with amounts held in construction accounts and amounts 
deposited in certain other restricted accounts, are generally equal to the face value of the associated 
bonds or notes outstanding. The effective interest rate on the receivables is generally imputed based 
on the effective rate on the bond or note, and the related income is included in Financing Income in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
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DASNY maintains various asset management monitoring systems to evaluate the ability of institutions 
to meet their debt service payments and establishes loan loss reserves as necessary. All bond and 
note issues are special obligations of DASNY and many include credit enhancements to ensure 
payment of debt service to the bondholders (see note 7). 

(f) Project Funds Receivable 
Project Funds Receivable includes amounts due from institutions for projects funded from other than 
available bond or note proceeds. The amounts reported in this asset category also include construction 
costs for certain mental health projects and grants paid by the State in the first instance which will 
subsequently be funded from bond or note proceeds or other State appropriations and reimbursed to 
the State. The related liability for these costs is reported as Due to New York State in the Statement of 
Net Position. Additionally, the cost of retainage on construction contracts that will be funded in the 
future by institution contributions or additional bond or note proceeds is included in Project Funds 
Receivable. 

(g) Other Receivables 
Other Receivables consist of amounts due from institutions for various healthcare loans, DASNY 
administrative fees, other postemployment benefit obligations and accrued leave credits allocable to 
public clients, prepaid expenses, and bond issuance costs and project costs advanced from DASNY 
operating funds. Also included in Other Receivables are amounts due to NGHP from New York City 
Health and Hospitals Corporation related to a building lease. At March 31, 2020 DASNY recorded 
$233 million as an allowance for uncollectible accounts primarily related to advances made to assist 
healthcare institutions which, for the most part, do not impact the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position and for which there are no associated bonds. 

(h) Capital Assets 
DASNY’s capital assets include land, buildings and equipment. Land is reported at its original 
acquisition cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation determined 
using the straight line method. DASNY buildings are depreciated over 25 years, building improvements 
and renovations are depreciated over the remaining life of the building or lease, furniture and 
equipment are depreciated over 7 to 10 years, financial management system equipment, software and 
related costs are depreciated over 10 years, and other computer equipment and software are 
depreciated over 5 years. Atlantic Avenue’s capital assets acquired from Interfaith Medical Center 
include land and buildings. Land is reported at its original acquisition value. Buildings are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation using the straight line method. Buildings will be depreciated over their 
remaining lives which range from 4 to 19 years (see note 5). 

(i) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows of resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by DASNY that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources include deferred outflows of 
resources related to pension and deferred outflows of resources related to postemployment benefits. 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension represent changes in actuarial assumptions, such as 
the discount rate, differences between expected and actual claims experience, differences between 
projected and actual earnings on plan investments and changes in proportion and proportionate share 
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of contributions and contributions to New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) 
for pension made in the current year subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred outflows of 
resources related to postemployment benefits represent changes of actuarial assumptions in total 
OPEB liability as provided by the actuarial report and benefit contributions to New York State Health 
Insurance Program (NYSHIP) made in the current year subsequent to the measurement date. 

Deferred inflows of resources are defined as an acquisition of net assets by DASNY that is applicable 
to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources include deferred inflows of resources related 
to pension. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension represent various changes in net pension 
liability as provided by ERS. 

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of
resources resources

OPEB activities $ 9,768  5,759  
Pension activities 14,945  3,744  

Total $ 24,713  9,503  

 

(j) Amounts Held for Institutions 
Certain public institutions provide monies directly to DASNY to be used for the construction or 
renovation of capital projects. Monies are also released from trustee accounts to DASNY for 
rehabilitation and renovation of projects. These monies and related earnings are included in Amounts 
Held for Institutions in the Statement of Net Position and are restricted for the purpose of making future 
improvements to projects. Also included in Amounts Held for Institutions are monies received from the 
State for purposes of helping hospitals in need and improving the healthcare delivery system, as well 
as, deposits of room rents collected by SUNY campuses to cover debt service and required reserves 
related to the SUNY Dormitory Facilities Revenue bond program. In addition, the obligation of NGHP to 
pay costs incurred in connection with properties owned by NGHP, or to redeem a portion of the North 
General Hospital Series 2003 Bonds, as well as the rent collected from Interfaith Medical Center to pay 
costs incurred in connection with properties owned by Atlantic Avenue, or to pay a portion of the debt 
service for the Interfaith Medical Center Series 2007 Bonds are included in Amounts Held for 
Institutions. 

(k) Due to New York State 
The State pays construction costs for certain mental health projects managed by other State agencies, 
and advances funds for various other programs from its short term investment pool (STIP), which are 
subsequently reimbursed by DASNY from bond or note proceeds, or other funds appropriated to 
DASNY. The unreimbursed balance of such State advances for construction costs and grant programs 
is included in Due to New York State in the Statement of Net Position. Patient income receipts related 
to the State mental health program and rent receipts from tenants leasing State owned mental health 
facilities which have not yet been remitted to the State are also included in this liability. In addition, 
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unremitted proceeds from the sale of State owned mental health properties are reported in Due to New 
York State. 

(l) Unearned Fees for Services 
As provided for in the various financing documents for all programs other than nonprofit health care 
institutions, independent colleges, universities and other nonprofit institutions, and certain New York 
State agencies, excess fees collected over expenses incurred relating to DASNY are obligations of 
DASNY to the institutions. Such amounts are included in the Statement of Net Position in Unearned 
Fees for Services. 

Conversely, any excess of expenses over fees collected are claims of DASNY against the institutions. 
Such amounts are included in the Statement of Net Position in Other Receivables. 

(m) Compensated Absences 
Employees accrue vacation at varying rates ranging from 13 days per year to a maximum of 25 days 
per year. Overtime eligible employees accrue compensatory leave when they work between 37.5 hours 
and 40 hours in a workweek. A maximum of 225 hours of accrued vacation leave and a maximum of 
240 hours of accrued compensatory leave is payable upon separation. Accrued expenses of 
$4.2 million were recorded at March 31, 2020 for the estimated obligation for vacation and 
compensatory leave and are included in Other Long Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 
Related receivables of $3.8 million, representing the portion of the liability allocable to public clients, 
are included in Other Receivables in the Statement of Net Position at March 31, 2020. In addition, 
DASNY is holding the remaining portion of the liability in a reserve established by the Board. 

(n) Derivative Instruments 
As a means to lower borrowing costs for the State and the City and to cost effectively support their 
strategies to diversify their debt portfolios with a combination of fixed and variable rate debt, at various 
times, DASNY enters into swap agreements. The related lease and financing agreements between 
DASNY and the State or the City include provisions that obligate the State or the City, subject to annual 
appropriation, to pay to DASNY all amounts due in connection with the swap agreements. Such swap 
repayment terms are considered derivative instruments with terms reciprocal to those of the swap 
agreements. When analyzed concurrently, because of the reciprocal terms, the swap agreements and 
the swap repayment terms in the lease and financing agreements with the State and the City are not 
considered associated with hedgeable items. Consequently, the swap agreements and the swap 
repayment terms in the lease and financing agreements are regarded as investment derivatives. Given 
that the fair value of the swap repayment terms offsets the fair value of the swap agreements and both 
are reported as investments, there is no net impact on the basic financial statements (see note 8). 

(o) Net Position 
The amounts reported in Restricted net position are restricted in accordance with the bond and note 
resolutions for the payment of outstanding bonds and notes and also may be used for the payment of 
project costs, arbitrage payments to the Internal Revenue Service and costs of issuance. Restricted net 
position is held for the benefit of the institutions and bondholders. Monies remaining upon retirement of 
the bonds and notes are returned to the institutions. The amounts reported in Unrestricted net position 
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are either undesignated and available to fund operating expenses or designated for a specific purpose 
by the Board and are not appropriable for operations (see note 13). 

(p) Revenue Recognition 
DASNY recognizes revenue when earned. Financing income is recognized as the related interest on 
bonds and notes is incurred. Fees for services are recognized, and unearned fees for services are 
amortized, as the related personal service expense of DASNY is incurred. 

(q) Income Taxes 
DASNY is a component unit of the State of New York and is therefore generally exempt from Federal, 
State, and local income taxes. 

(r) Use of Estimates 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic 
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. 

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the fair value of investments, the 
carrying value of capital assets, accrued expenses and other long term liabilities. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

(3) Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
DASNY has a written investment policy that applies to all investments. This policy allows for the following 
investments: 

• Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the 
United States of America; 

• Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by any 
agency or instrumentality of the United States of America that are rated in at least the second highest 
rating category by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; 

• Certificates or other instruments which evidence the ownership of or the right to receive the payment of 
the principal and guaranteed interest on obligations, wholly comprised of such obligations listed above; 

• Obligations of any state or territory of the United States of America, any political subdivision of any 
state or territory of the United States of America, or any agency, authority, public benefit corporation or 
instrumentality of such state, territory or political subdivision, (i)(A) the interest on which is excludable 
from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code, which is not a “specified private 
activity bond” within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code (Exempt 
Obligations), or (B) which qualifies as a “Build America Bond” within the meaning of Section 54AA of 
the Internal Revenue Code, and (ii) are rated in at least the second highest rating category by at least 
two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; 
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• Shares or interest in a mutual fund, partnership or other fund registered under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, and operated in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 
1940, as amended, whose objective is to maintain a constant share value of $1.00 per share, that is 
rated in the highest short term rating category by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization, and at the time such investment is made, such fund had a minimum asset value of 
$500 million; 

• Commercial paper issued by a domestic corporation rated in the highest short-term rating category by 
at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations and having maturities of not longer 
than 270 days from the date they are purchased; 

• Bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank rated in the highest short-term rating category by at least two 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations and having maturities of not longer than 365 days 
from the date they are purchased; 

• Collateralized investment agreements; and 

• Collateralized or insured certificates of deposit. 

In addition, DASNY’s Board and Treasurer may also specifically authorize, as deemed appropriate, other 
investments that are consistent with DASNY’s investment objectives, and in the case of investments held in 
the restricted debt accounts of the individual series of bonds and notes, allowed under the provisions of the 
related bond, or note resolution. 

One of the primary objectives of DASNY’s investment policy is to provide sufficient liquidity to meet the 
purposes for which the funds are being held. The majority of DASNY’s investment portfolio consists of 
short-term investment securities to achieve its liquidity objective. Consequently, DASNY’s investment policy 
does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates since the majority of investments are short term in nature. Most investments are 
held to pay for construction expenditures with maturities based upon expectations of when funds will be 
used, or held on behalf of the various institutions to fund specific reserves or payment of debt service, or 
held for general operating purposes which generally do not exceed maturities of more than one year. 
Investment securities maturing beyond five years generally relate to sinking fund installments that are 
typically invested with maturity dates that coincide with those of the underlying bonds and notes. 

The amount of investments by type and maturity, at March 31, 2020 is presented in the following table. 
Investment maturity classifications in the table are based on the maturity of the underlying investments, 
which differs from their classification on the Statement of Net Position. Investments reported as current on 
the Statement of Net Position generally have maturities of one year or less, unless they are restricted by 
the underlying bond and note resolutions and are expected to be reinvested upon maturity, or the proceeds 
at maturity are generally used to support construction activities, in which case they are reported as 
investments, other than current. 
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Investments reported as current on the Statement of Net Position at March 31, 2020 include $352 million 
for debt service payments to be made in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 which is restricted by the 
underlying bond and note resolutions. Also included in investments reported as current at March 31, 2020 
are investments held for DASNY operations, nonbond related capital projects and rehabilitation and 
renovation of projects totaling $341 million. 

Percentage Maturities (in years)
Investment type Amount of total Less than 1 1-5 More than 5

(In thousands)

Recorded at fair value:
Obligations of the United States

Government:
U.S. Treasury notes/bonds $ 1,136,392  28.0 % $ 962,159  174,233  —  
U.S. Treasury bills 1,176,082  29.0 1,176,082  —  —  
Certificates of indebtedness 14  — 6  8  —  

2,312,488  57.0 2,138,247  174,241  —  

Federal agency, notes and debentures:
Federal National Mortgage

Association (FNMA) 108,537  2.7 25,914  43,031  39,592  
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 1,565,677  38.6 1,565,677  —  —  
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

(FHLMC) 61,700  1.5 61,700  —  —  

1,735,914  42.8 1,653,291  43,031  39,592  

Recorded at cost:
Certificates of deposit 7,032  0.2 7,032  —  —  

Total $ 4,055,434  100.0 % $ 3,798,570  217,272  39,592  

 

Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligations. 

Federal Agency notes and debentures are issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs), which 
carry the implicit guarantee of the United States federal government. At March 31, 2020, DASNY held 
approximately $1.7 billion in agency securities issued by several GSEs, all of which are rated in at least the 
second highest rating category by at least two of the nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 

A portion of DASNY’s investment portfolio is invested in several money market funds, which are open 
ended mutual funds that invest in short term debt securities and whose objective is to carry a net asset 
value (NAV) of $1.00, allowing for withdrawals equal to the amount of the original deposit plus an allocable 
portion of any interest that may have been earned by the fund. These funds are reflected in the Statement 
of Net Position as a component of Cash and Cash Equivalents. DASNY’s investment policy requires at the 
time of investment, each fund have a minimum asset value of $500 million and be rated in the highest 
short-term rating category by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization. At March 31, 
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2020, DASNY held approximately $957 million in investments of this type which were all rated in the 
highest short-term rating category by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, DASNY’s deposits may not be 
returned. DASNY’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk includes minimum equity and rating requirements 
of, and diversification among, trustee and custodian banks. Certain deposits held in DASNY bank accounts 
are collateralized with securities held by custodian banks and certain are insured by federal depository 
insurance. As of March 31, 2020, DASNY had bank deposits of $190 million of which $155 million were 
uninsured and uncollateralized. The uninsured cash balances were primarily the result of amounts 
temporarily held pending debt repayment, disbursement, or investment. 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of DASNY’s investment in a single 
issuer. DASNY’s investment policy places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer; however, 
DASNY does establish minimum ratings requirements for each underlying issuer other than the United 
States Government where they are generally required to be rated in no less than the second highest rating 
category by at least 2 nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. As of March 31, 2020, DASNY 
had more than 5% of its investments in FHLB securities. These investments were 38.6% of the total 
investment portfolio as of March 31, 2020. 

DASNY uses an independent pricing source to determine the fair value of its investments. DASNY 
categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. This three-tiered fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure the fair value of the assets as follows: 

Level 1: Investments’ fair value based on quoted prices for identical assets in active markets; 

Level 2: Investments’ fair value based on observable inputs which may include quoted prices for 
identical assets in markets not considered to be active, and quoted prices of similar assets in 
active or inactive markets; and 

Level 3: Investments’ fair value based on unobservable inputs. 
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At March 31, 2020, DASNY had the following fair value measurements (in thousands): 

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant

in active other
markets for observable

identical assets inputs
March 31, 2020 (Level 1) (Level 2)

Investments by fair value level:
U.S. Treasuries $ 2,312,488  —  2,312,488  
Federal agencies 1,735,914  —  1,735,914  
Money market mutual funds 957,014  957,014  —  

Total investments measured at
fair value $ 5,005,416  957,014  4,048,402  

 

DASNY has no investments classified in the Level 3 category. 

Investments classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets and daily publicly 
published prices for those securities. Those classified in Level 2 are valued using the following approaches: 

• U.S. Treasuries: quoted prices for identical securities in markets that are not active; and 

• Federal Agencies: matrix pricing based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices. 

(4) Leases and Loans Receivable 
Leases and Loans Receivable represents amounts due in accordance with various financing agreements 
relating to the utilization of bond proceeds on projects. 
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Leases and Loans Receivable at March 31, 2020 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands): 

Minimum payments to be received during the fiscal years ending March 31:
2021 $ 5,509,541  
2022 5,434,560  
2023 5,266,437  
2024 5,067,252  
2025 4,906,982  
Thereafter 64,401,360  

Total minimum payments receivable 90,586,132  

Less future financing income, unexpended bond proceeds, and other credits 35,405,301  

Total leases and loans receivable, net 55,180,831  

Less current leases and loans receivable, net 4,336,021  

Long-term leases and loans receivable, net $ 50,844,810  

 

Leases and loans receivable financed by bonds and notes are collectible through periodic payments. The 
collection of this receivable from institutions is dependent on the ability of each institution to generate 
sufficient resources to service its bonds and notes. For hospitals and nursing homes, this is predicated in 
large part on their ability to obtain Medicare, Medicaid, or other third party reimbursement rates sufficient to 
offset operating costs. For higher education institutions, this is predicated in large part on their ability to 
maintain enrollment and tuition at levels adequate to offset operating costs. For certain public institutions, 
payment is dependent upon annual appropriation. In certain situations, various credit structures are in 
place to reduce the risk of nonpayment to bondholders should an institution be unable to pay its debt 
service (see note 7). Based on continuous monitoring of collectability, it has been determined that there is 
no need to establish reserves for loan losses at March 31, 2020. 
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(5) Capital Assets 
Capital assets, net at March 31, 2020 consisted of the following (dollars in thousands): 

2019 Additions Deletions 2020

Capital assets:
Land:

DASNY $ 1,083  —  —  1,083  
Atlantic Avenue 1,306  —  —  1,306  

Buildings:
DASNY 23,388  —  —  23,388  
Atlantic Avenue 34,366  —  —  34,366  

Equipment – DASNY 13,346  1,467  —  14,813  

Total capital assets 73,489  1,467  —  74,956  

Less accumulated depreciation:
DASNY 26,451  859  —  27,310  
Atlantic Avenue 13,883  1,514  —  15,397  

Total accumulated
depreciation 40,334  2,373  —  42,707  

Capital assets, net $ 33,155  (906) —  32,249  

 

Depreciation expense is included in Maintenance and Operations expense in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
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(6) Long-Term Liabilities 
DASNY’s long-term liabilities as of March 31, 2020, including the current portion, are comprised of the 
following (in thousands): 

Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Deletions balance one year

Bonds and notes payable $ 54,954,925  9,701,585  (6,440,860) 58,215,650  4,423,162  

Other long-term liabilities:
Accrued retainage $ 55,374  23,098  (24,427) 54,045  4,852  
Compensated absences 4,288  —  (99) 4,189  —  
Total OPEB liability 205,179  14,822  (11,693) 208,308  —  
Net pension liability 4,686  19,595  (13,148) 11,133  —  
Other 2,446  132  (2,178) 400  179  

Total other long-term
liabilities $ 271,973  57,647  (51,545) 278,075  5,031  

Due to New York State $ 160,232  1,995,212  (2,008,425) 147,019  134,430  

Amounts held for institutions $ 609,356  415,071  (389,313) 635,114  348,530  
 

(7) Bonds and Notes Outstanding 
(a) Description of Bonds and Notes 

Bonds and notes are special obligations of DASNY payable solely from payments required to be made 
by or for the account of the institution for which the particular special obligations were issued. Such 
payments are pledged or assigned to the trustees for the holders of the respective special obligations. 
DASNY has no obligation to pay its special obligations other than from such payments. In certain 
instances, DASNY has a lien on certain land and buildings and revenues to secure the payment of 
principal and interest on the outstanding bonds and notes. 

In addition, certain bond and note issues include credit enhancements. The following summarizes 
bonds and notes outstanding at March 31, 2020 by primary security feature (dollars in thousands): 

Amounts
of debt

outstanding

Backed by letters of credit $ 921,605  
Insured by municipal bond insurance 1,479,520  
Backed by mortgages insured by the State of New York Mortgage Agency 63,540  
Backed by mortgages insured by agencies of the federal government 135,785  
Payable from State and local government appropriations, state service

contracts or designated income funds 35,789,653  
Backed by pledged assets and revenues or payments 19,825,547  

Total $ 58,215,650  
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Fixed rate and variable rate bonds and notes are due in various installments through the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2054 and bear interest at variable rates currently ranging from 0.75% per annum to 
4.84% per annum, and fixed interest rates currently ranging from 1.25% per annum to 6.5% per 
annum. 

As of March 31, 2020, DASNY had a total of $1.7 billion outstanding variable rate demand bonds, of 
which $866 million was secured by direct pay bank letters of credit, $445 million was secured by 
appropriations or by pledged assets and revenues or by payments of the respective clients and with 
liquidity provided by standby purchase agreements, $136 million was secured by agencies of the 
federal government, and $263 million was secured by pledged assets and revenues or by payments of 
the respective clients acting as their own liquidity provider. 

The variable rate demand bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal 
to principal plus accrued interest upon notice and delivery (tender) of the bonds to the remarketing 
agent being provided within a period of time as specified under the respective bond documents. The 
remarketing agent is required to use its best efforts to sell the repurchased bonds at a price equal to 
100% of the principal amount by adjusting the interest rate. For those bonds secured by a direct pay 
letter of credit, the trustee is required to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price of bonds 
delivered to it and to reimburse the letter of credit provider from monies available from remarketing and 
from monies held under the bond resolution. The direct pay letters of credit relevant to variable rate 
bonds expire at various times through April 25, 2029. For those bonds with liquidity provided by a 
standby bond purchase agreement, secured by an agency of the federal government, or where the 
conduit borrower is acting as its own liquidity provider, the trustee is required to draw from monies held 
under the bond resolution or from the liquidity provider an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price 
of bonds delivered to it which are unable to be remarketed. The standby bond purchase agreements 
expire at various times through December 31, 2023. 

DASNY issues debt on behalf of both public, primarily the State, and private institutions. DASNY has 
elected the option under GASB Interpretation No. 2, Disclosure of Conduit Debt Obligations, to report 
conduit debt, primarily issued on behalf of private institutions, in its basic financial statements. In 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended, DASNY is 
included in the financial statements of the State as a discretely presented component unit. As such, 
bonds issued on behalf of the State are not considered conduit debt. Under GASB Interpretation No. 1, 
Demand Bonds Issued by State and Local Governmental Entities, variable rate demand bonds should 
be reported as long term debt if certain conditions are met; otherwise, they should be reported as a 
current liability. In the case of its conduit variable rate demand bonds, DASNY is not a party to the 
liquidity or takeout agreement with the provider. All liquidity provider fees are paid directly by the 
conduit borrower and are not DASNY’s obligation, and, in some cases, the conduit borrower acts as its 
own liquidity provider. Such bonds, and the related leases and loans receivable, are classified as 
current on the Statement of Net Position. With respect to variable rate demand bonds issued on behalf 
of its public clients, those bonds secured by liquidity or takeout agreements that expire within one year 
are also classified as current on the Statement of Net Position. All variable rate demand bonds, and the 
related leases and loans receivable, are disclosed in note 7(b) Maturities of Bond and Notes and note 4 
Leases and Loans Receivable. As of March 31, 2020, approximately $1.5 billion of variable rate 
demand bonds were classified as current on the Statement of Net Position. 
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DASNY, on behalf of the State, has purchased letters of credit and standby purchase agreements from 
various providers to ensure the liquidity needs of variable rate demand bonds can be met. As of 
March 31, 2020, these agreements covered $592 million of variable rate demand bonds outstanding 
with costs ranging from 0.065% per annum to 0.44% per annum of the amount of credit provided. In 
addition, remarketing agents receive annual fees ranging from 0.05% per annum to 0.425% per annum 
of the outstanding principal amount of the bonds. These agreements have expiration dates ranging 
from December 8, 2020 to January 7, 2022. 

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds that are tendered by the bondholders within 
six months of the tender date, each agreement with the applicable liquidity provider requires the bonds 
to accelerate and be payable in 4 to 10 equal semi-annual principal repayments bearing an adjustable 
interest rate equal to the higher of the bank’s prime lending rate or an index tied to the Federal Funds 
rate. If all the takeout agreements were to be exercised because all outstanding $592 million demand 
bonds were put and not resold, DASNY would be required to pay between $80 million and $157 million 
per year in principal repayments plus interest for 5 years under the installment loan agreements. 
DASNY is only obligated to make such payments from monies paid to it by the State pursuant to 
financing agreements related to the bonds. 

DASNY, on behalf of the City, has purchased a standby purchase agreement from a provider to ensure 
the liquidity needs of variable rate demand bonds can be met. As of March 31, 2020, this agreement 
covered $126 million of variable rate demand bonds outstanding at a cost of 0.57% per annum of the 
amount of credit provided. In addition, the remarketing agent receives annual fees of 0.08% per annum 
of the outstanding principal amount of the bonds. This agreement expires on November 23, 2020. 

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds that are tendered by the bondholders within 
three months of the tender date, the agreement with the liquidity provider requires the bonds to 
accelerate and be payable in 20 equal quarterly principal repayments bearing an adjustable interest 
rate equal to the higher of the bank’s prime lending rate or an index tied to the Federal Funds rate. If 
the takeout agreement was to be exercised because all outstanding $126 million demand bonds were 
put and not resold, DASNY would be required to pay $25 million per year in principal repayments plus 
interest for 5 years under the installment loan agreement. DASNY is only obligated to make such 
payments from monies paid to it by the City pursuant to financing agreements related to the bonds. 

Certain bonds and notes have the respective institution’s cash and investments, surety bonds, or 
letters of credit pledged to collateralize certain reserve requirements and are not included in the 
Statement of Net Position. As of March 31, 2020, the amounts pledged are as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

Cash and investments (at fair value) $ 1,728  
Surety bonds 104,260  
Letters of credit 7,500  

 

Under certain circumstances, if the credit ratings of the surety bond provider fall below a certain level, 
the related reserve funds are required to be funded with cash and investments, deposits of which are to 
be made by the ultimate obligor on the bonds in ten equal semi annual installments beginning on the 
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first day of the bond year following such downgrade. As of March 31, 2020, the credit ratings of three 
surety bond providers, who had issued a total of $29 million in surety bonds, had fallen below the level 
requiring such actions, and deposits have been made to the related debt service reserve funds. There 
are no similar provisions under the terms of letters of credit. If the rating of the letter of credit provider is 
downgraded, the ratings on the related bonds may be downgraded. 

(b) Maturities of Bonds and Notes 
Maturities of bonds and notes are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal years ending March 31:
2021 $ 2,969,021  2,686,429  5,655,450  
2022 2,892,717  2,541,843  5,434,560  
2023 2,854,822  2,411,615  5,266,437  
2024 2,791,129  2,276,123  5,067,252  
2025 2,773,439  2,133,543  4,906,982  
2026–2030 13,153,483  8,717,721  21,871,204  
2031–2035 10,837,969  5,863,318  16,701,287  
2036–2040 9,028,320  3,543,735  12,572,055  
2041–2045 6,047,609  1,751,253  7,798,862  
2046–2050 4,107,566  553,539  4,661,105  
2051–2055 759,575  37,272  796,847  

Total $ 58,215,650  32,516,391  90,732,041  

 

Bonds and notes maturing during the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020 as shown in the table above 
do not correspond to the amount reported as the current portion of bonds and notes outstanding in the 
Statement of Net Position due to a difference in classification of certain variable rate demand 
obligations. The amount reflected above is based on the stated maturity dates for all bonds and notes 
outstanding while the current portion of bonds and notes outstanding in the Statement of Net Position 
also includes the entire principal amount outstanding of variable rate demand obligations issued on 
behalf of DASNY’s conduit borrowers as well as those variable rate demand obligations relevant to 
public programs that have liquidity agreements expiring during the upcoming fiscal year and private 
placement bonds in term rate mode with a mandatory tender during the upcoming fiscal year. 

Interest reflected above for variable rate debt was projected using the interest rates in effect as of 
March 31, 2020. 

(c) Tax-Exempt Leasing Program 
DASNY offers a tax exempt leasing program (TELP) that utilizes DASNY’s tax exempt financing 
authority. In a TELP lease, DASNY, as the lessee, subleases the equipment to the borrower and 
thereafter has no security interest in the equipment. The repayments are assigned to and made directly 
to the lessor. The repayments are nontaxable income to the lessor. The leases do not constitute 
DASNY or State debt. Since DASNY assigns both its security interest in the equipment and its rights to 
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receive sublease repayments to the lessor, and DASNY has no active role in managing or 
administering the leases, the TELP leases are not included in the Statement of Net Position. The total 
amount of TELP leases outstanding as of March 31, 2020 was approximately $289 million. 

(8) Derivative Instruments 
Article 5 D of the State Finance Law authorizes the State and various public authorities that issue State 
supported bonds to enter into interest rate exchange agreements (swap agreements) up to certain limits 
and also limits the amount of outstanding variable rate State supported bonds. Additionally, Section 2926 of 
the Public Authorities Law authorizes DASNY to enter into swap agreements up to certain limits in 
connection with bonds and notes issued on behalf of a municipality for court facilities and combined 
occupancy structures and bonds and notes issued on behalf of a municipality for health facilities. Pursuant 
to these authorizations, as a means to lower borrowing costs for the State and the City and to cost 
effectively support their strategies to diversify their debt portfolios with a combination of fixed and variable 
rate debt, at various times, DASNY enters into swap agreements. The lease and financing agreements 
entered into by DASNY with the State or the City include terms that obligate the State or City, subject to 
annual appropriation, to pay to DASNY all amounts due in connection with these swap agreements and 
obligate DASNY to pay the State or City any amounts received in connection with the swap agreements. 
These swap repayment terms in the lease and financing agreements are considered derivative instruments 
with terms reciprocal to those of the swap agreements. When analyzed concurrently, because of the 
reciprocal terms, the swap agreements and the swap repayment terms in the lease and financing 
agreements with the State and the City are not considered to be associated with hedgeable items. 
Consequently, the swap agreements and the swap repayment terms in the lease and financing agreements 
are regarded as investment derivatives. 

At March 31, 2020, DASNY had a total of 26 pay-fixed, receive-variable swap agreements outstanding with 
a total notional amount of $696 million and a negative fair value of $139 million and reciprocal swap 
repayment terms in lease and financing agreements with like values. 

The table below summarizes the fair values, notional amounts and changes in fair value of derivative 
instruments outstanding as of March 31, 2020. Bracketed amounts denote negative values. 

Notional Fair Swap Change in Change in
amounts value fair value fair value fair value

(In thousands) classification (In thousands) classification (In thousands)

Investment derivatives:
Pay-fixed, receive-variable swaps:

Swap agreements $ 695,595  Investment $ (139,154) Investment $ (62,641) 
income

Pay-variable, receive-fixed swaps: 62,641  
Lease and financing agreements 695,595  Investment 139,154  Investment

income

Grand total $ —  $ —  

Type of derivative instrument
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Fair value – The fair values of the swap agreements and the swap repayment terms in the lease and 
financing agreements were estimated using the zero-coupon method. This method calculates the future net 
settlement payments required by the agreements, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the 
yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the 
spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each 
future net settlement on the agreements. The inputs used in the fair value measurement of the derivative 
investments are Level 2 category. 

Credit risk – As of March 31, 2020, DASNY was not exposed to credit risk on the swap agreements with 
$139 million in negative fair values. Since changes in interest rates affect the fair values of swap 
agreements, it is possible that swap agreements with negative fair values become positive, and that swap 
agreements with positive fair values increase in value, which would expose DASNY to increased credit risk. 
DASNY’s potential credit risk on the swap agreements is reduced due to the lease and financing 
agreements in place that obligate the State or City to pay DASNY, subject to annual appropriation, all 
amounts due in connection with the swap agreements. Certain swap agreements include setoff provisions 
should a swap agreement terminate. These setoff provisions permit, at DASNY’s option, or in some cases, 
at the option of the nondefaulting or nonaffected party, all swap agreements with the given counterparty 
related to the bonds to terminate and to net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum will be owed 
by, or owed to, DASNY. Should the counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of the swap 
contracts, as of March 31, 2020, DASNY faces a maximum credit risk exposure related to the swaps’ net 
positive fair value of $0. 

As of March 31, 2020, DASNY was exposed to credit risk on the swap repayment terms with $139 million in 
positive fair values because the State’s and the City’s obligations under the lease and financing 
agreements are subject to annual appropriation. 

DASNY guidelines require that, for swap agreements entered into under provisions of Article 5 D of the 
State Finance Law, counterparties have credit ratings from at least one nationally recognized statistical 
rating agency that is within the two highest investment grade categories and ratings which are obtained 
from any other nationally recognized statistical rating agency for such counterparty shall also be within the 
three highest investment grade categories, or the payment obligations of the counterparty are 
unconditionally guaranteed by an entity with such credit ratings. DASNY guidelines require that, for swap 
agreements entered into under the provisions of Section 2926 of the Public Authorities Law, counterparties 
have credit ratings from at least two nationally recognized statistical rating agencies that are within the 
three highest investment grade categories, or the payment obligations of the counterparty are 
unconditionally guaranteed by an entity with such credit ratings. In the event that a counterparty’s ratings 
are reduced below certain ratings thresholds, the counterparty is required to comply with the collateral 
requirement provisions whereby the counterparty will be required to post collateral in an amount equal to 
102% of the swap termination value under certain conditions. Collateral is required to be posted at any time 
that the counterparty does not have at least one rating in the second highest rating category, or any of the 
ratings assigned to the counterparty are below the three highest rating categories, and credit exposure 
exists on the valuation date. DASNY monitors the values of the related swap agreements on a daily basis 
to determine if collateral is required to be posted. As of March 31, 2020, there was no requirement for 
collateral to be posted. Collateral on all swap agreements related to State supported bonds is to be held by 
a third party custodian. Collateral on all swap agreements related to City supported bonds may be held by 
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either a third party custodian or DASNY. All collateral may be in the form of direct obligations of, or 
obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by, the United States of America, or other 
securities permitted by law and agreed upon in writing by DASNY and the counterparty. 

The credit ratings for DASNY’s counterparties at March 31, 2020 are as follows: 

Moody’s S&P Fitch

Counterparties:
Citibank, N.A., New York Aa3 A+ A+
Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine

Derivative Products, L.P. Aa2 AA- N/A
JPMorgan Chase Bank Aa2 A+ AA
Merrill Lynch Derivative Products AG Aa3 AA NR
Morgan Stanley Capital Services, Inc. A3 BBB+ A
UBS AG Aa3 A+ AA-
New York State General Obligations Aa1 AA+ AA+
New York State Mental Health

Services Facilities Improvement
Revenue Bonds NR AA AA

New York City General Obligations Aa1 AA AA

 

Additionally, certain swap agreement payments made by DASNY are insured by various municipal bond 
insurance companies. 

(9) Debt Refundings 
DASNY has issued bonds on behalf of various institutions to defease existing revenue bonds. Under the 
terms of the resolutions for the defeased bonds, investments have been deposited in irrevocable trusts with 
trustee banks to provide sufficient amounts to be used solely for the payment of scheduled debt service on 
these bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds, certain of which are still held by investors, are considered to 
be defeased pursuant to the applicable bond resolutions and the liabilities for those bonds and related 
investments have been removed from the Statement of Net Position. As of March 31, 2020, outstanding 
revenue bonds of approximately $4.3 billion were considered defeased under existing accounting 
standards; accordingly, such bonds and the related investments placed in trust are not included in the basic 
financial statements. 

The refundings during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, involved the issuance of fixed rate and 
variable rate bonds to refund previously issued fixed and variable rate bonds. The refundings totaled 
$3.46 billion par value of bonds (new bonds) to refund $3.32 billion par value of outstanding bonds 
(refunded bonds). The proceeds of $3.52 billion from the sale of new bonds, including net original issue 
premium, plus $51 million of refunded bond monies and deposits from institutions, were deposited in 
irrevocable trusts (escrow accounts and in certain cases, redemption accounts) and used to purchase 
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United States Government securities as described above. The new bonds also funded reserve 
requirements and provided for costs of issuance. 

The fixed rate refundings included the issuance of $3.15 billion par value of new fixed rate bonds with an 
average interest rate of 3.94% to refund $2.99 billion par value of outstanding fixed rate bonds with an 
average interest rate of 4.98%. The proceeds of $3.21 billion from the sale of new fixed rate bonds, 
including net original issue premium, plus an additional $38 million of refunded fixed rate bond monies and 
deposits from institutions, were used to fund the related escrow accounts and in certain cases, redemption 
accounts. These fixed rate refundings resulted in a decrease of $408 million in aggregate future debt 
service payments and a net present value economic gain of $389 million for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2020. 

The remaining refundings involved either the issuance and/or the refunding of variable rate bonds and 
included a total of $308 million par value of new bonds to refund $321 million par value of outstanding 
bonds. The proceeds of $314 million from the sale of these bonds, including net original issue premium, 
plus an additional $12.6 million of refunded bond monies and deposits from institutions, were used to fund 
the related escrow accounts and in certain cases, redemption accounts. Since these refundings involved 
variable rate bonds, neither the difference between the cash flows required to service the new bonds and 
those required to service the refunded bonds, nor the present value gain or loss can be reasonably 
determined as of March 31, 2020. 

(10) Commitments and Contingencies 
(a) Litigation 

DASNY has been named as a defendant in various pending actions which seek to recover damages for 
alleged wrongful death, personal injuries, loss of service or medical expenses, and violation of civil 
rights. There are other pending or threatened actions or matters with regard to breach of contract, 
retained percentages, damages, work at certain projects, liens filed with DASNY, and other claims 
involving DASNY contracts. It is management’s opinion, based upon the advice of General Counsel, 
that these pending or threatened matters are covered either by DASNY’s insurance program, surety 
bonds filed with DASNY, indemnification from the State or its agencies and municipalities under 
applicable statutes or other agreements (subject to the availability of funds), are recoverable from 
institutions, or DASNY has sufficient resources to meet any potential liability associated with such 
pending or threatened actions or matters and, therefore, could not be deemed to have a material 
adverse effect on DASNY. 

(b) Construction Commitments 
In the normal course of business, DASNY enters into various commitments for construction costs. Such 
commitments, when added to the costs already incurred, are not expected to exceed the total amount 
of indebtedness issued and other available funding, including future authorized bond issues. 
Commitments for future construction costs totaled approximately $819 million at March 31, 2020. 

(c) Risk Management 
DASNY is exposed to various risks of loss, including torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; accidents; and natural disasters. DASNY 
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maintains commercial insurance coverage, subject to certain limits and deductible/retention provisions, 
for each of these risks of loss through the purchase of general liability, excess liability, property, 
builder’s risk, directors’ and officers’ liability, blanket crime, business travel accident, auto liability, and 
workers compensation insurance policies. 

(d) COVID-19 Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) impact 
As a result of COVID-19, DASNY has experienced a reduction in some of its construction work and 
delays in bond financings. The impact on DASNY’s finances and operations cannot be determined at 
this time. 

(11) Retirement Plans 
(a) New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System 

(i) Description of Plan 

DASNY participates in the ERS and the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan 
(the Systems) administered by the New York State and Local Retirement System. These are 
cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement benefits as 
well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and 
benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law 
(NYSRSSL). As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (Comptroller) 
serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The Comptroller promulgates rules 
and regulations for the administration and transaction of the business of the Systems and for the 
custody and control of their monies. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 
12236 or on the Comptroller’s website at www.osc.state.ny.us/pension. For financial reporting 
purposes, the Systems are presented on an aggregated basis. 

(ii) Benefits 

The classes of employees covered under the ERS range from Tiers 1-6. In order to be eligible for 
retirement, all members must be at least age 55 and have a minimum of 5 years of service for Tiers 
2-4, and 10 years of service for Tiers 5 and 6. There is no minimum service requirement for Tier 1 
members. Generally, all members are eligible for early retirement at age 55 with a benefit 
calculation of 1.67% of final average salary for each year of service. Benefit calculations for Tiers 1 
and 2 members with greater than 20 years of service credit, or Tiers 3-5 members between 20 and 
30 years of service credit, is 2.0% of final average salary for each year of service. Tier 3-5 
members are eligible for an additional 1.50% of final average salary applied to each year of service 
over 30 years. Generally, Tier 6 member retirement benefits are 1.75% of final average salary for 
each year of service for members with 20 years of service, with an additional 2.0% of final average 
salary for each year of service over 20 years. For Tiers 1-5, final average salary is the average of 
the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years of employment. Tier 6 final average salary 
is the average of the wages earned in the five highest consecutive years of employment. 

Other benefits provided under the ERS include: ordinary disability, accidental disability, and 
post-retirement benefit increases. 
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(iii) Funding Policy 

Funding of the Systems is accomplished through member and employer contributions and 
investment earnings, according to the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law. 

Plan members who joined the Systems before July 27, 1976 are not required to make 
contributions. Those joining on or after July 27, 1976 and before January 1, 2010 who have less 
than 10 years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of salary. Those joining on or 
after January 1, 2010, and before April 1, 2012, are required to contribute 3% throughout active 
service. Persons joining on or after April 1, 2012, are required to contribute between 3% and 6% 
throughout active service. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. 
Fully contributed average employer contribution rate for the Tiers of 15.5% was applicable to the 
annual covered payroll for the year ended March 31, 2019. DASNY’s required contribution for the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 was $7.2 million and was 100% of the contribution required. 

(iv) Net Pension Liability 

DASNY’s proportionate share of the Systems’ net pension liability reported as of March 31, 2020 
was $11.1 million. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2019. DASNY’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on DASNY’s projected long term contribution effort 
compared to the projected total long term contribution effort of all employers in the Systems. At 
March 31, 2019, DASNY’s proportion of the net pension liability was 0.16%, up slightly from the 
percentage at the March 31, 2018 measurement date. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and related pension amounts, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Systems and additions to/deductions from the Systems’ fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Systems. For 
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms and investments are reported at fair value. 

(v) Actuarial Information 

The total pension liability for the March 31, 2019, measurement date was determined by using an 
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2018, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension 
liability to March 31, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary scale 4.2 percent indexed by service
Investment rate of return, including inflation 7.0 percent compounded annually,

net of investment expenses
Cost of living adjustments 1.3 percent annually
Decrements Developed from the Plan’s 2015 experience

study of the Period April 1, 2010
through March 31, 2015

Mortality improvement Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2014
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rate of return by the largest asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target 
asset allocation as of March 31, 2019 are summarized below: 

Long-term
expected

Target real rate
Asset Allocation of return

Domestic equity 36 % 4.55 %
International equity 14 6.35
Private equity 10 7.50
Real estate 10 5.55
Absolute return strategies 2 3.75
Opportunistic portfolio 3 5.68
Real assets 3 5.29
Bonds and mortgages 17 1.31
Cash 1 (0.25)
Inflation Indexed bonds 4 1.25

100 %

 

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability at March 31, 2019 was 7%, the same 
as the rate used for the March 31, 2018 measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required 
rates, actuarially determined. Based upon the assumptions, the Systems’ fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The following presents DASNY’s current period net pension liability calculated using the current 
period discount rate assumption of 7%, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it 
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were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6%) or 1 percentage point 
higher (8%) than the current assumption (in thousands): 

1% Current 1%
Decrease assumption Increase

(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)

DASNY net pension liability (asset) $ 48,676  11,133  (20,405) 

 

(vi) Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

At March 31, 2020, DASNY reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred
outflows inflows

of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,192  747  
Changes of assumptions 2,798  —  
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments —  2,858  
Changes in proportion and differences between DASNY

contribution and proportionate share of contributions 2,725  139  
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,230  —  

Total deferred outflows/inflows of resources $ 14,945  3,744  

 

Deferred outflows of resources of $7.2 million, resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to net pension liability in the year ended 
March 31, 2021. 

The remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense for the fiscal years 
ending March 31 as follows (in thousands): 

2020 $ 3,250  
2021 (1,459) 
2022 336  
2023 1,844  

Total $ 3,971  
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(vii) Total Pension Expense 

Total pension expense includes certain current period changes in the total net pension liability, 
projected earnings on pension plan investments and the amortization of deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources for the current period. The collective pension expense 
reported for the period ended March 31, 2020 is $8.3 million. 

(b) Optional Retirement Plan 
Unrepresented DASNY employees who have estimated annual salary of $75 thousand or greater may 
participate in an Optional Retirement Program (ORP) under IRS Section 401(a), which is a multiple 
employer, defined contribution plan administered by separate vendors – TIAA CREF, Fidelity, 
Metropolitan Life, VALIC, and VOYA. DASNY’s plan is administered exclusively by TIAA CREF. ORP 
employer and employee contributions are dictated by State law. The ORP provides benefits through 
annuity contracts and provides retirement and death benefits to those employees who elected to 
participate in an ORP. Benefits are determined by the amount of individual accumulations and the 
retirement income option selected. All benefits generally vest after the completion of one year of 
service if the employee is retained thereafter. Employer contributions are not remitted to an ORP plan 
until an employee is fully vested. As such there are no forfeitures reported by these plans if an 
employee is terminated prior to vesting. Employees who joined an ORP after July 27, 1976, and have 
less than ten years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their salary. Those 
joining on or after April 1, 2012 are required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their 
salary, for their entire working career. Employer contributions are 8%. Employee contributions are 
deducted from their salaries and remitted on a current basis to the respective ORP. Pension expense 
for the plan for the period ended March 31, 2020 is $112 thousand. 

(12) Postemployment Benefits 
(a) Plan Description 

DASNY provides postemployment healthcare benefits for eligible retired employees and their 
dependents who retire from DASNY. DASNY is a voluntary participating employer in NYSHIP, which is 
administered by the State of New York. Article XI of the New York State Civil Service Law assigns the 
authority to NYSHIP to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plans and to establish 
maximum obligations of the plan members to contribute to the plan. Subject to collective bargaining 
agreements, DASNY’s Board is authorized to establish the contribution rates of DASNY employees 
and retirees below those set by Civil Service Law. NYSHIP is considered a single employer defined 
benefit plan offered by DASNY to its employees. 

In order to be eligible, employees must be enrolled as a NYSHIP enrollee or a dependent of a NYSHIP 
enrollee at the time of retirement from DASNY, be eligible to receive a pension from the ERS and to 
have ten years of State service. In calculating the ten year service requirement, all of the employee’s 
service need not be with DASNY, but may be a composite of New York State service elsewhere, with a 
minimum of one year with DASNY immediately preceding retirement. Employees with no prior State 
service must work a minimum of ten years with DASNY before they and their dependents are eligible 
for the retirement medical benefits. 
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DASNY pays 100% of the cost of single coverage and 75% of the cost of dependent coverage for 
employees who retired before January 1, 1983. DASNY pays 90% of the cost of single coverage and 
75% of dependent coverage for employees who retire on or after January 1, 1983. A vestee is a 
DASNY employee vested as a member of the retirement system administered by the State, who has 
withdrawn from State service after meeting DASNY’s minimum service requirement but has not met the 
age requirement for continuing health insurance. As of the measurement date, there were 889 
participants consisting of 552 current employees, 0 retirees entitled to benefits under DASNY but not 
yet receiving, and 367 retired and/or spouses of retired employees under DASNY. 

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) was signed into law on March 23, 2010. On 
March 30, 2010 the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (HCERA), which amends 
certain aspects of PPACA was signed into law. The new laws have a financial impact on employers 
who sponsor postretirement healthcare benefits and therefore have been reflected in DASNY’s 
actuarial valuations since April 1, 2010. An adjustment was made to reflect the effect of the benefit 
mandates as well as the excise tax that is applicable starting in 2018. The excise tax is 40% of the 
excess amount by which the plan’s healthcare cost exceeds limits as defined in the legislation. The 
2018 limits are $10,200 for active employees with single coverage and $11,850 for retirees with single 
coverage. The limits for family coverage are $27,500 and $30,950 for active employees and retirees, 
respectively. The limits are scheduled to increase with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus 1% in 
2019 and with CPI for all years thereafter. In December 31, 2019, this tax law was repealed and no 
longer anticipated to be paid by DASNY. This impact has been reflected in the March 31, 2019 
measurement of the DASNY OPEB liabilities. 

(b) Funding 
DASNY has not funded a qualified trust or its equivalent as defined in GASB Statement No. 75, 
therefore, benefits are funded on a pay as you go basis. DASNY’s OPEB expenses are paid from fees 
collected from clients. As of March 31, 2020, the portion of the OPEB expense allocable to certain 
public clients was 90% and will be paid from future fees to be collected. A receivable in the amount of 
$143.0 million is included in Other Receivables―noncurrent in the Statement of Net Position at 
March 31, 2020. The OPEB expense allocable to nonprofit health care institutions, independent 
colleges, universities, and other nonprofit institutions, and certain New York State agencies was funded 
with $3.9 million as of March 31, 2020, with $11.9 million of the allocation remaining unfunded from 
client program operating funds for the related changes in the OPEB liability. 
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(c) Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 
The total OPEB liability as of March 31, 2020 was measured as of March 31, 2019 and determined by 
a valuation as of March 31, 2018. The measurement of the total OPEB liability at March 31, 2019 used 
the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation date March 31, 2018
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increase rate 3.25% per year
Discount rate 3.29%
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.75% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate

rate of 4.5% for 2026 and later years
Retirees’ share of benefit-related 10% of the individual premium, plus 25% of

costs the excess of any family premium over the
individual premium

 

The discount rate was based on the S&P municipal bond 20-year high grade index. 

Mortality rates were based on the MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 which was developed from a blending of 
data and methodologies found in the Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2017 
report published in October 2017) and the demographic assumptions used in the 2017 Annual Report 
of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal Disability 
Insurance Trust Funds (published in July 2017). 

(d) Accounting Information 
Changes in Total OPEB Liability during the Fiscal Year 

Total OPEB
Liability

(In thousands)

Total OPEB Liability, beginning balance $ 205,179  

Service cost 7,584  
Interest 7,238  
Changes in assumptions (6,985) 
Benefit payments (4,708) 

Net changes 3,129  

Total OPEB Liability, ending balance $ 208,308  

 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs include the removal of a liability held for potential excise tax 
liability following the repeal of this tax in December 2019 and a change in the discount rate from 3.44% 
in the prior year to 3.29% in the current year. 



DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2020 

 57 (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents DASNY’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower and 1 percentage point higher 
than the current year rate (in thousands): 

1% Decrease Current rate 1% Increase
2.29% 3.29% 4.29%

Total OPEB Liability March 31, 2020 $ 244,632  208,308  179,326  

 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

The following presents DASNY’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if 
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower and 1 percentage 
point higher than the current year rate (in thousands): 

Current trend
1% Decrease rates 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability March 31, 2020 $ 177,113  208,308  248,119  

 

DASNY recognized $14.9 million in expenses related to OPEB for the year ended March 31, 2020. At 
March 31, 2020, DASNY reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred
outflows inflows

of resources of resources

Changes in assumptions $ 4,827  5,759  
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 4,941  —  

Total $ 9,768  5,759  
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DASNY will recognize the contributions subsequent to the measurement date in the next fiscal year. 
The remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized 
in future OPEB expense for the fiscal years ending March 31 as follows (in thousands): 

2021 $ 79  
2022 79  
2023 79  
2024 (312) 
2025 (857) 

Total $ (932) 
 

(13) Unrestricted Net Position 
Unrestricted Net Position includes amounts that are not appropriable for operating expenses and are Board 
designated for a specific future use. Designations at March 31, 2020 are as follows (in thousands): 

Designated:
Health care institution assistance $ 27,037  
Advance funding new projects 5,000  
Coverage for financial risks associated with directors and officers liability

insurance policies 1,577  
Women/Minority Business Enterprises capital access, training and development 3,648  
Reserve for replacement of corporate facilities 5,789  
Reserve for 21st Century Technology Transformation 1,179  
Reserve for Evolution 2,513  

Total designated 46,743  

Undesignated (19,702) 

Total net position unrestricted $ 27,041  
 

(14) Subsequent Events 
COVID-19 is having a significant financial impact on the State, which includes a temporary cashflow 
shortfall caused primarily by the extension of the state personal income tax filing deadline. Under recently 
enacted legislation, DASNY is authorized to negotiate on behalf of the State and enter into line of credit 
facilities with financial institutions in order to provide temporary liquidity to the State. In addition, DASNY is 
authorized to issue revenue anticipation notes and bond anticipation notes under the Personal Income Tax 
program until December 31, 2020. On May 20, 2020, DASNY issued State Personal Income Tax 
Subordinate Revenue Anticipation Notes (General Purposes), Series 2020A, in the amount of $1.0 billion. 
On June 15, 2020, DASNY entered into a line of credit agreement on behalf of the State with Bank of 
America, which will provide additional temporary liquidity up to $3.0 billion to the State. On June 18, 2020, 
DASNY issued State Personal Income Tax Subordinate Revenue Anticipation Notes (General Purposes), 
Series 2020B, in the amount of $3.5 billion. 
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

DASNY’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.16 % 0.15 % 0.15 % 0.15 % 0.16 % 0.16 %
DASNY’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 11,133  4,686  13,797  24,119  5,259  7,035  
Covered payroll 52,200  51,472  46,666  45,656  44,162  45,270  
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 23.33 % 9.10 % 26.80 % 52.80 % 11.91 % 15.54 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 96.3 % 98.2 % 94.7 % 90.7 % 97.9 % 97.2 %

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Pension Contributions
New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 7,230  7,232  6,805  6,875  7,716  7,980  
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (7,230) (7,232) (6,805) (6,875) (7,716) (7,980) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ —  —  —  —  —  —  

Covered payroll $ 52,380  52,200  51,472  46,666  45,656  44,162  
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.80 % 13.85 % 13.22 % 14.73 % 16.90 % 18.07 %

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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2020 2019

Total OPEB Liability:
Service cost $ 7,584  6,895  
Interest 7,238  7,086  
Changes in assumptions (6,985) 7,436  
Benefit payments (4,708) (4,838) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 3,129  16,579  

Total OPEB liability, beginning 205,179  188,600  

Total OPEB liability, ending $ 208,308  205,179  

Net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 83.8 % 118.0 %

Covered-employee payroll $ 52,200  51,472  

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 399.1 % 398.6 %

Changes in benefit terms.  There were no significant changes in benefits for the
March 31, 2018 actuarial valuation.

Changes in assumptions.  A liability held for potential excise tax was removed and
the discount rate was updated from 3.44% in 2019 to 3.29% in 2020.
The discount rate was updated from 3.67% in 2018 to 3.44% in 2019.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

(Dollars in thousands)

DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
and Related Ratios (Unaudited)
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